
Summons to Meeting

Monday 15 January 2018

Executive
Wednesday 24 January 2018, 9.00 am

Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington
Membership:

Councillor Alan Smith (Chair) Councillor Mark Fryer (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Barbara Cannon Councillor Joan Ellis
Councillor Konrad Hansen Councillor Michael Heaslip
Councillor William Jefferson Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Dean Devine on 01900 702502.

Agenda

1. Minutes of meeting Wednesday 8 November 2017 of Executive  (Pages 3 - 
8)

2. Apologies for Absence  

3. Declaration of Interests  
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

4. Questions  
To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the meeting.

5. Members' Announcements  

6. Q2 Performance Report 2017/18  (Pages 9 - 62)

Page 1



7. Reedlands Business Park - ERDF/Delivery of the project  (Pages 63 - 68)

Corporate Director

Date of Next Meeting:

Wednesday 21 February 2018, 10.00 am
Council Chamber, Allerdale House

Page 2



At a meeting of the Executive held in The Wave Centre, Maryport on Wednesday 8 
November 2017 at 10.00 am

Members

Councillor Alan Smith (Chair) Councillor Mark Fryer (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Barbara Cannon Councillor Joan Ellis
Councillor Konrad Hansen Councillor Michael Heaslip
Councillor William Jefferson Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes

Staff Present

B Carlin, D Devine, I Frost, N Hardy, C Holmes, E Kelly, K Kerrigan, C Nicholson, 
E Ridings, A Seekings, S Stanhope, R Wilkinson and G Wilson

Also Present

P Bales

216. Minutes of meeting Wednesday 6 September 2017 of Executive 

The minutes were signed as a correct record.

217. Minutes of meeting Thursday 28 September 2017 of Executive 

The minutes were signed as a correct record.

218. Declaration of Interests 

None declared.

219. Questions 

None received.

220. Members' Announcements 

None received.

221. Planning for the right homes in the right places consultation 

The subject of the decision

The Head of Development Services submitted a report which sought Members’ 
views on and endorsement of the proposed responses to the Department for 
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) consultation, ‘Planning for the 
right homes in the right places’.

Councillor M Fryer moved the recommendation set out in the report. This was 
seconded by Councillor A Smith. The recommendation was unanimously 
agreed.

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



Alternative options considered

Not to respond to the DCLG consultation

The reason for the decision

The consultation contained some potentially significant implications for the 
Council’s growth agenda. Its focus was primarily aimed at addressing housing 
need in the south of England but in doing so would have the opposite effect on 
the north of England local authorities for the reasons set out in the proposed 
consultation response. It was therefore important that the Council used this 
opportunity to submit its views and concerns with respect to the proposed 
changes to national planning policy.

The decision

Resolved:

That the proposed response appended to the report forms the Council’s official 
response to the Department for Communities and Local Government 
consultation paper, ‘Planning for the right homes in the right places’.

222. Local Discretionary Rate Relief 2017-2021 

The subject of the decision

The Head of Customer, Transformation and Commissioning submitted a report 
to seek approval for the Local Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme 2017-2021.

Councillor K Hansen moved the recommendations set out in the report. This 
was seconded by Councillor A Smith. The recommendations were unanimously 
agreed.

Alternative options considered

None

The reason for the decision

To approve a local discretionary rate relief scheme utilising Government support 
announced in the Spring Budget 2017 to assist those businesses seeing the 
largest increased following the recent revaluation of business rateable values 
which took effect from 1 April 2017.

The decision

Resolved:

That:

1. The local discretionary rate relief scheme be approved.

Page 4



2. Delegation of responsibility to award targeted support in Year 4 of the 
scheme be given to the Customer Operations Manager/Customer 
Accounts Manager as outlined in the report.

223. Tender Evaluation Fleet 

The subject of the decision

The Head of Customer, Transformation and Commissioning submitted a report 
seeking approval to appoint a new 5 year contract for contract hire of fleet to the 
successful tenderer.

Councillor K Hansen moved the recommendations set out in the report. This 
was seconded by Councillor A Smith. The recommendations were unanimously 
agreed.

Alternative options considered

To award the contract to the highest scoring supplier for contract hire. The 
potential for fixed cost with minimal internal expertise was a key benefit for the 
council.

To seek external borrowing and separate the supply from maintenance of 
council vehicles. This was considered to be high risk for the council.

The reason for the decision

The council needed to replace white fleet vehicles. Some were leased vehicles 
at the end of existing lease agreements; some were owned vehicles at the end 
of life.

The decision

Resolved:

That:

1. The council leases the replacement fleet. This was identified as the best 
funding option for the council when considering the risks of ownership. 
Contract hire was identified as the best way of meeting the council’s fleet 
requirements at this time. The potential for fixed costs with minimal 
internal expertise was a key benefit for the council.

2. The contract for white fleet vehicles be awarded to Supplier A, which was 
the highest scoring tenderer on price and quality. The five year contract 
was valued at £196,939.77.

Page 5



224. Quarter 2 Finance Report - April to September 2017 

The subject of the decision

The Head of Financial Services submitted a report which sought to inform 
Members on the Council’s financial performance against budget for the period 
April to September 2017 along with the forecast position to 31 March 2018.

Members noted the key messages at the end of quarter 2 for 2017/18, 
summarised on page 53 of the agenda.

Councillor B Cannon moved that the report be noted. This was seconded by 
Councillor A Smith. The motion was unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered:

None

The reason for the decision:

To inform Members of the Council’s financial performance against budget for 
the period April to September 2017 along with the forecast position to 31 March 
2018.

The decision:

Resolved:

That the report be noted.

225. Revised Revenue & Capital Budget 2017-18 

The subject of the decision:

The Head of Financial Services submitted a report to seek approval for the 
revised revenue and capital budgets for 2017-18.

Concerns were raised about the additional costs of agency staff to cover 
vacancies pending recruitment in the Building Control Pay Group, highlighted 
on page 108 of the agenda.

Councillor B Cannon moved the recommendations set out in the report. This 
was seconded by Councillor A Smith. The recommendations were unanimously 
agreed.

Alternative options considered:

None

The reason for the decision:

Page 6



The Council had a statutory responsibility (Local Government Finance Act 
1992) to set a balanced budget for each financial year meaning the Council’s 
expenditure on services had to be contained within the available funding 
envelope. The Council’s 2017-18 (original) revenue and capital budgets were 
approved by Council on 1 March 2017.

The decision: 

Recommended:

That Council:

1. Approves the revised net Revenue Budget requirement of £14,629k.

2. Approves the revised Capital Budget (including proposed financing) of 
£23,641k comprising £5,935k in 2017-18, £15,516k in 2018-19 and 
£2,190k in 2019-20.

3. Notes the revised position on earmarked and general fund balances.

226. 2018/19 Budget Strategy & Updated Medium Term Financial Plan 2018/19 
to 2020/21 

The subject of the decision:

The Head of Financial Services submitted a report setting out the Budget 
Strategy 2018-19. The strategy took into account current and future financial 
issues, it set out assumptions and initial proposals and provided a timetable for 
delivering a balanced budget in 2018-19.

Councillor B Cannon moved the recommendations set out in the report. This 
was seconded by councillor A Smith. The recommendations were unanimously 
agreed.

Alternative options considered:

None

The reason for the decision:

The report is the first report of the Council’s budget setting process for 2018-19 
onwards. It set out the financial pressures that the Council was likely to face in 
the coming years and suggested an appropriate strategy to ensure that the 
authority remained financially stable over the long term.

The decision:

Resolved:

That:

1. The significant financial challenges that the Council faced be noted

Page 7



2. The planning assumptions for building the 2018-19 budget be noted.

3. A public consultation on budget proposals be undertaken.

The meeting closed at 11.20 am

Page 8



Allerdale Borough Council

Executive – 24 January 2018

Council Plan  
Quarter 2 Performance Report 2017/18

The Reason for the Decision The Council’s performance at the end of 
Quarter 2 2017/18 as measured by 
projects/activities and KPIs set out in the 
Corporate Business Plan 2017/18 

Summary of options considered N/A

Recommendations That Members note the information contained 
within the report and take action to improve 
performance where necessary. 

Financial /  Resource Implications None arising directly from the report

Legal / Governance Implications None arising directly from the report

Community Safety Implications None arising directly from the report

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

None arising directly from the report

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

Equality impacts are considered in the 
development of individual projects and 
programmes

Wards Affected All

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

This is a performance report on delivery against 
the Council’s priorities as set out in the Council 
Plan 2015-19 and Corporate Business Plan 
2017/18

Is this a Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Cllr Alan Smith

Lead Officer Alex FitzGerald, 
Senior Policy and Performance Officer
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale.gov.uk
01900 702719

Page 9

Agenda Item 6

mailto:alex.fitzgerald@allerdale.gov.uk


Report Implications

Community Safety Y Employment (external to the Council) Y

Financial N Employment (internal) Y

Legal N Partnership Y

Social Inclusion Y Asset Management Y

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

1.0 Introduction

1.1 In line with the Council’s Performance Management Framework the Executive and 
Overview and Scrutiny receive quarterly performance reports based on the Council 
Plan.  

1.2 The Quarter 2 corporate performance report for 2017/18 covers the period from 1 
July to 30 September 2017.  

1.3 The Q2 Performance Report was considered by SMT at the end of October, 
circulated in November to Executive members and considered by the Scrutiny 
Performance Task Group in December.

1.4 The report is based on key projects/activities and key performance indicators set 
out in the Corporate Business Plan 2017/18.  

1.5 The Corporate Business Plan 2017/18 is built around our Council Plan.  For each 
Council Plan priority theme the Business Plan details key service improvement 
projects/actions as well as activity to deliver key strategies and plans over the next 
year, and the key performance indicators that we will use to track our performance.  
In addition the Business Plan sets out how our significant day to day ‘business as 
usual’ service activity contributes to achieving our objectives.  

2.0 Council Performance

2.1 The full quarterly performance report is attached as Appendix 1 and contains:

 A short overview of our Quarter 2 performance 

 Visual summaries for each of our five priorities

 Appendices containing more detail on performance against our priorities, key 
performance indicators, corporate risks and outcome measures

Page 10



2.2 In line with the Council’s Integrated Assurance and Risk Strategy, Heads of Service 
review the risk and issues log on a monthly basis or as required, and report to SMT on 
existing key risks (those which score 9 and above), risks that have changed 
significantly and any new and emerging risks/issues, with key risks being reported to 
the Executive on a quarterly basis. The current Key Risks Report can be found in 
Appendix C to the Quarterly Performance Report.

3.0 Customer Satisfaction and Service

3.1 Projects within the priority area of ‘Creating a sustainable business’ in the Council 
Plan relate specifically to customer satisfaction and service.  

4.0 Services Delivered as Locally as Possible

4.1 This is an area covered within the Council Plan under the ‘Creating a sustainable 
business’ priority.

5.0 Finance/Resource Implications

5.1 There are no additional resource requirements arising from this report.

6.0 Legal Implications and Risks

6.1 There are no additional legal implications arising from this report.  Any risks will be 
managed through the Integrated Assurance and Risk Strategy and corporate 
methodology.

7.0 Recommendations

7.1 That Members note the information contained within the report and take action to 
improve performance where necessary.

Alex FitzGerald
Senior Policy and Performance Officer

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



1

Quarterly corporate performance report
Summary of Quarter 2 performance: 1 July – 30 September 2017

This is a summary of the second quarter corporate performance report for 2017/18 covering 
the period from 1 July to 30 September 2017.  It contains:

 A short overview of our Quarter 2 performance 

 Summaries for each of our five priorities

 Appendices containing detail on performance against our priorities, key performance 
indicators and corporate risks

Performance overview

This report contains Quarter 2 progress updates on the 71 projects/activities and the 52 key 
performance indicators set out in the Business Plan 2017/18. The outcome measures1 set out in 
the Business Plan will be reported in Quarters 2 and 4 as data for many of these measures is 
only produced once a year.  The report also updates members on key corporate risk and activity 
to mitigate those.

Summary of Quarter 1 position Total Red Amber Green Blue Not 
targeted

Projects/activities 71 0 10 57 4 -
KPIs 52 9 8 30 - 5

Projects/activities (Appendix A)
We have now completed 4 of our 71 key projects/activities.  

 A Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document was formally adopted by Full 
Council on 26 July 2017 to ensure that new developments include the infrastructure 
improvements necessary to support the development.(1.1)

 Just under 4,300 were engaged and introduced to a range of sport and physical activity 
through funding from the Community Sport Activation Fund over the 3 years of the 
programme. A number of sessions continue to be delivered in the community and as a legacy 
of the project. There are two schemes we hope to develop through Sport England 
applications which will be submitted in Q3.(4.3)

 The charge for the collection of commercial recyclates is now fully introduced and the 
budget indications are that the scheme generate the income target figure of 25K. (5.7a)

1 These are mainly wider contextual measures, such as health or employment figures published by other 
organisations.  Our work will have an influence on these, but they are not directly related to our service provision 
and they will therefore not be attributed with a RAG rating.

Page 13



2

 People Resources have procured the services of a new Occupational Health provider to 
provide effective health support to all our employees and appropriate advice to our 
managers. (5.16)

We are on track with 57 of our 71 key projects/activities.  Highlights this quarter include:

 The Council's continued support of the Cumbria Growth Hub has ensured that over 40 
businesses have successfully accessed business support. This has resulted in 24 jobs being 
created. (1.2)

 The Council provided capital funding to support the works to enable a property to be retained in 
social housing for the next 5 years providing a family home for a young couple who are working 
in the Ambulance services as paramedics in the area.  (1.6)

 A new grant application for Community Housing funding went live in September with grants 
available for revenue or capital funding.  The Council received its first revenue funding 
application from Above Derwent CLT in September. (2.4a)

 The Council’s new Safe and Warm Grants commenced in July.  Of the 2 grants approved in 
quarter 2, 1 has been completed and a vulnerable household has benefited from a replacement 
heating system that they would have otherwise been unable to afford to replace. (2.7b)

 The Environmental Hit Squad apprenticeship team is now established and is deployed to improve 
environmental quality and provide NVQ level 2 qualification in Cleaning and Environmental Support 
Services. Spring cleans have now been delivered in Maryport, Workington, Aspatria, Silloth, 
Seaton, Cockermouth, Wigton and Keswick as well as a coastal clean-up carried with volunteers. 
(3.6)

 Figures continue to be on track for meeting the 2017/18 targets for increasing usage at our 
leisure facilities. Figures for those groups identified as being more likely to be inactive are 
consistently higher than expected. (4.4)

 10 Festivals and events have been supported this year so far. Reboot and Northbound have 
both seen increased visitor numbers this year.  Cockermouth Taste food festival was hugely 
successful again attracting around 40,000 visitors with an estimated economic impact of approx. 
£1.97m. (4.6)

 4 new housing assistance grant products have been introduced this quarter to help reduce 
admissions to, and delayed discharge from, hospital.  A Housing Occupational Therapist has 
been recruited and it is anticipated this will generate more referrals for the discretionary grants 
now available. (4.11)

 During 2016/17 2593 customers registered on myAllerdale, during the first six months of 
2017/18 we have signed up another 2674 and are on track to double the number of customers 
able to report using this channel. Over 5000 reports have been submitted since going live in 
2016 and there has been a 30% increase in self service reports received between Q1 and Q2. 
(5.2)

 33 new trade waste contracts won since the beginning of the financial year. The service is 
currently forecasting to meet the £25k additional income target. (5.7b)

There were 10 amber projects/activities:  

 Following the Accelerated Housing Programme bid submitted in March 2017 the Homes and 
Communities Agency have now advised that they are unable to consider package of small 
sites for this programme due to geography and viability of sites.  Still progressing Southfield 
School, Moorclose Leisure Centre, Westfield Drive.(1.4)

Page 14



3

 The government had previously communicated its intentions to move to 100% business rates 
retention by 2019/20. An updated timetable for the implementation of 100% retention of 
business rates and the proposed scheme are not yet available so the impact remains 
unknown. The government has now published an ‘Invitation to Local Authorities in England to 
pilot 100% Business Rates Retention in 2018/19. We will maintain a watching brief to ensure 
the Council is able to understand and plan for this move. (1.7) (5.13b)  

 In looking at a range of options to deliver affordable housing through HCA schemes, using 
the up to date list of developers applications that are due to expire and sites that are stalled 
the team are looking to contact developers where sites may benefit from progressing via 
referral to HCA as SMEs. (2.4b)  

 All environmental clean-up work has now been completed and the essential works to the 
exterior of the dwelling have been completed on a long-term derelict property in Maryport. 
The building surveyor is now looking to gain safe access to all floors of the property to carry 
out a site survey to enable an options appraisal to be undertaken. (3.8b) 

 The existing exercise on referral scheme is still running and actively engaging with approx. 
100 participants each quarter. We are working with Wigton Hospital to deliver a localised pilot 
of the Physical Activity Care Pathway. This should engage with an additional 60 - 100 
participants. Funding of £10,000 is being sought to deliver an initial 12 months. (4.5) 

 Nothing further to update on incentives for landlords to become accredited. Work continues 
on the development of a Housing Enforcement and Compliance Policy. A project overview 
document (POD) has been produced. (4.10b)

 Responsibility for reviewing all emergency reception centres has passed to Cumbria County 
Council and Allerdale BC will assist in identifying and reviewing suitable reception centres. 
(4.12a)

 The production of an Information Strategy will not now be complete by end September 2017. 
The Information Strategy has been scheduled to be completed by April 2018 as part of the 
project plan for the General Data Protection Regulation Project.  The Council's suite of 
information security policies have been updated in line with GDPR.  (5.11)

 The HR Advisor has prepared a work force plan addressing succession and workforce 
planning. Draft workforce plan is on hold until the newly appointed HR Manager is in post and 
has reviewed the document.  (5.17)

There were no red project/activities.

Key performance indicators (Appendix B)

30 of our 51 KPIs are green this quarter.  

There are 8 KPIs rated as amber, these are:

 99% of public conveniences cleaned within the Service Level Agreement against a target of 
100% (KFS03)

 Leisure Centre usage at Keswick is slightly off target by around 500 visits. Swim lessons and 
gym memberships are at their highest levels, however, the pool is predominantly a tourist 
facility and usage at the beginning and end of the School holidays was slightly below target.  
(KCS03a)

 Food safety inspections (Category A-B) slightly below target - reduced staff levels and 
reactive work has led to a small number of A/B rated inspections being carried out later than 
target (KHH10) 

Page 15



4

 1.2 working hours lost per month due to major systems downtime over the Q2 period.  
Intermittent failure caused period of downtime due to failed fibre in building, when replaced 
service was resumed (KCTC12)

 NNDR collection rate slightly below target but higher than same point last year. Still expected 
to achieve annual target (KCTC13)

 Council Tax collection rate very slightly below target, but still expect to achieve the annual 
target. (KCTC14)

 95.9% of invoices paid in 30 days against a target of 98% with an improving trend over the 
last 2 quarters – some issues to resolve with prompt receipting of purchase orders when 
goods/services delivered, work ongoing to improve this area is showing results (KFS01)

 An estimated 46.1% of household waste sent for recycling, slightly below target and down on 
Q2 last year (KCS01)

There are 9 KPIs rated as red, these are:

 84.7% of invoices from local Cumbrian businesses paid within 14 days, an improvement on 
Q1 but still below target – still some issues to resolve with prompt receipting of purchase 
orders when goods/services delivered (KFS02)

 Just 4 affordable homes facilitated by the Council in Q2 - Affordable homes provision 
delivered in Harrington, Workington.   The number of affordable homes delivered are 
determined by the developer output as opposed to being a performance related target as 
such.  The Council has limited control of the delivery rates (KHH01)

 1 empty property grant is complete and now occupied, below the target position. There are 4 
more properties where works have been completed however the final grant payment and 
closure of the grant occurs when the properties are occupied. (KHH06)

 82% of Disabled Facilities Grants approved within 10 weeks from receipt of referral, a slight 
improvement on Q1 but still below the target of 100% - out of the 38 grants approved in Q2, 
7 were approved outside of the 10 week referral to approval target time. (KHH07)

 The % of programmed private water supplies sampled is behind the targeted position for the 
end of Q2.  The number of samples taken was reduced due to staffing issues, but a new 
plan has been produced from now until April 2018. External resource is now in place to 
assist with the delivery of the sampling programme to ensure that our targets are met. 
(KHH09)

 Average speed of answer on calls to 03031231702 at 65 seconds against a target of 45 
seconds – this has improved considerably from Q1 and is now close to achieving target 
(KCTC04)

 Abandoned calls rate at 8% against a target of 7% - performance has improved since Q1 
and are very close to achieving target. (KCTC05)

 3129 website unique page views per day, below target of 3500. There have been some 
below-target fluctuations with the data in recent months, which is often reflected in these 
months. (KCTC07)

 Average no. of working days lost to sickness absence per employee per annum was 9.70 at 
the end of Q2 against a target of 7 days.  The annual cumulative figure has increased which 
has been impacted by long term sickness. However, long term sickness has now 
significantly reduced. Overall the total number of days lost to sickness in September was 
20% lower than August. (KPR01)

Page 16



5

Key Corporate Risks (Appendix C)

All strategic risks identified are contained within the Corporate Risk and Issues Log. Key risks 
(those which score 9 and above) are included in this report.  There are currently 14 key risks which 
have been reviewed by the Senior Management Team. The current Key Risks Report setting out 
mitigating actions can be found in Appendix C to this report.

Outcome measures (Appendix D)

The outcome measures set out in the Business Plan are reported in Quarters 2 and 4 as data for 
many of these measures is only produced once a year. These are mainly wider contextual 
measures, such as health or employment figures published by other organisations.  Our work will 
have an influence on these, but they are not directly related to our service provision and so they are 
not attributed with a RAG rating.  Monitoring these outcome measures will give us an indication as 
to whether our efforts are contributing to the improvement in outcomes for our communities that we 
are aiming to achieve under the priority themes that we have set out in the Council Plan.

The information in this report relates to activity to the end of September 2017.

Page 17



6

Strengthening our economy summary 
We aim to create a strong, sustainable and vibrant local economy and create jobs

Summary of Quarter 1 position Total Red Amber Green Blue Not 
targeted

Projects/activities 7 0 2 4 1 -
KPIs 10 1 0 7 - 2

Projects/activities (Appendix A)

Blue – completed
 A Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document was formally adopted by Full 

Council on 26 July 2017 to ensure that new developments include the infrastructure improvements 
necessary to support the development.(1.1)

Green highlights
 The Council's continued support of the Cumbria Growth Hub has ensured that over 40 businesses 

have successfully accessed business support. This has resulted in 24 jobs being created. The 
necessary agreements to create a loans fund next year are being finalised. (1.2)

 The Council provided capital funding to support the works to enable a property to be retained in 
social housing for the next 5 years providing a family home for a young couple who are working in 
the Ambulance services as paramedics in the area.   Work to use Council assets to deliver housing 
is progressing with work on the conversion of Maryport WC. (1.6)

Amber – areas to watch
 Following the Accelerated Housing Programme bid submitted in March 2017 the Homes and 

Communities Agency have now advised that they are unable to consider package of small sites for 
this programme due to geography and viability of sites.  Still progressing Southfield School, 
Moorclose Leisure Centre, Westfield Drive.(1.4)

 The government had previously communicated its intentions to move to 100% business rates 
retention by 2019/20. An updated timetable for the implementation of 100% retention of business 
rates and the proposed scheme are not yet available so the impact remains unknown. The 
government has now published an ‘Invitation to Local Authorities in England to pilot 100% 
Business Rates Retention in 2018/19. We will maintain a watching brief to ensure the Council is 
able to understand and plan for this move. (1.7) 

Key performance indicators (Appendix B)

Green highlights
 100% of major planning applications determined within statutory period, above target of 95% 

(KDS01)

 96% of minor planning applications determined within statutory period, above target of 95% 
(KDS02) 391 housing units granted planning permission against a target of 103 (KDS03)

 123 housing completions against a target of 86 (KDS04)

Red – areas of concern
 84.7% of invoices from local Cumbrian businesses paid within 14 days, an improvement on Q1 but 

still below target – still some issues to resolve with prompt receipting of purchase orders when 
goods/services delivered (KFS02)

Page 18



7

Tackling inequality summary 
We aim to reduce poverty and support people facing financial difficulties

Summary of Quarter 1 position Total Red Amber Green Blue Not 
targeted

Projects/activities 12 0 1 11 0 -
KPIs 8 1 0 7 - 0

Projects/activities (Appendix A)

Green highlights
 A new grant application for Community Housing funding went live in September with grants 

available for revenue or capital funding.  The Council received its first revenue funding application 
from Above Derwent CLT in September. (2.4a)

 The Council’s new Safe and Warm Grants commenced in July.  Of the 2 grants approved in 
quarter 2, 1 has been completed and a vulnerable household has benefited from a replacement 
heating system that they would have otherwise been unable to afford to replace.(2.7b)

 Money from the newly introduced Apprenticeship Levy is now being utilised to fund a number of 
apprenticeships for existing employees. These include; Project Management, AAT and Building 
Surveying. Where external recruitment to apprenticeships is taking place, we endeavour to target 
people from priority areas within the Borough. (2.8)

Amber – areas to watch
 In looking at a range of options to deliver affordable housing through HCA schemes, using the 

up to date list of developers applications that are due to expire and sites that are stalled the 
team are looking to contact developers where sites may benefit from progressing via referral to 
HCA as SMEs. (2.4b)  

Key performance indicators (Appendix B)

Green highlights

 Target of 20 days processing time for processing Housing Benefit new claims exceeded – 12 
days achieved in Q2 (KCTC01a)

 Target of 20 days processing time for processing Council Tax new claims achieved (KCTC01b)

 8 day target achieved for processing Housing Benefit/Council Tax change of circumstances 
(KCTC02)

 100% of homeless decisions made within guideline 33 days (KHH04)

 100% of Safe and Warm Grants approved within 10 weeks of initial enquiry (KHH05) 

Red – areas of concern
 Just 4 affordable homes facilitated by the Council in Q2 - Affordable homes provision delivered 

in Harrington, Workington.   The number of affordable homes delivered are determined by the 
developer output as opposed to being a performance related target as such.  The Council has 
limited control of the delivery rates (KHH01)

Page 19



8

Enhancing our towns summary
We aim to create thriving towns that are attractive and welcoming and retain 

their distinctive characters

Summary of Quarter 1 position Total Red Amber Green Blue Not 
targeted

Projects/activities 11 0 1 10 0 -
KPIs 2 1 1 0 - 0

Projects/activities (Appendix A)

Green highlights

 Work has progressed on the development of a Maryport Regeneration Plan. Meetings have been 
held with night time economy businesses in Workington as the Council seeks to consider the 
Purple Flag process. (3.1)

 The Environmental Hit Squad apprenticeship team is now established and is deployed to improve 
environmental quality and provide NVQ level 2 qualification in Cleaning and Environmental Support 
Services. Spring cleans have now been delivered in Maryport, Workington, Aspatria, Silloth, 
Seaton, Cockermouth, Wigton and Keswick as well as a coastal clean-up carried with volunteers. 
(3.6)

 Additional focus is now placed on the environmental enforcement process with 2 Street Scene 
Officers concentrating on full-time on environmental enforcement. Focus is being placed on 
increasing the numbers of fixed penalty notices. (3.7)

Amber – areas to watch

 All environmental clean-up work has now been completed and the essential works to the exterior 
have also now been completed on a long-term derelict property in Maryport. The building surveyor 
is now looking to gain safe access to all floors of the property to carry out a site survey to enable 
an options appraisal to be undertaken. (3.8b)

Key performance indicators (Appendix B)

Amber – areas to watch
 99% of public conveniences cleaned within the Service Level Agreement against a target of 100% 

(KFS03)

Red – areas of concern
 1 empty property grant is complete and now occupied, below the target position. There are 4 more 

properties where works have been completed however the final grant payment and closure of the 
grant occurs when the properties are occupied. (KHH06)

Page 20



9

Improving health and wellbeing summary
We aim to help people live healthy and active lives and reduce health inequalities

Summary of Quarter 1 position Total Red Amber Green Blue Not 
targeted

Projects/activities 18 0 3 14 1 -
KPIs 11 2 2 7 - 0

Projects/activities (Appendix A)

Blue - completed
 Just under 4,300 were engaged and introduced to a range of sport and physical activity through 

funding from the Community Sport Activation Fund over the 3 years of the programme. A 
number of sessions continue to be delivered in the community and as a legacy of the project. 
There are two schemes we hope to develop through Sport England applications which will be 
submitted in Q3.(4.3)

Green highlights
 Through the Allerdale Health and Wellbeing Forum, Dementia Action Alliances (DAAs) are being 

supported with Maryport and Cockermouth progressing to be a DAA. A Community Falls Prevention 
worker has been appointed and a slipper exchange scheme developed. Suicide awareness courses 
held around the district including bespoke session for elected members. (4.1)

 Figures continue to be on track for meeting the 2017/18 targets for increasing usage at our leisure 
facilities. Figures for those groups identified as being more likely to be inactive are consistently 
higher than expected. (4.4)

 10 Festivals and events have been supported this year so far. Reboot and Northbound have both 
seen increased visitor numbers this year.  Cockermouth Taste food festival was hugely successful 
again attracting around 40,000 visitors with an estimated economic impact of approx. £1.97m. (4.6)

 4 new housing assistance grant products have been introduced this quarter to help reduce 
admissions to, and delayed discharge from, hospital.  A Housing Occupational Therapist has been 
recruited (secondment from Cumbria County Council) and it is anticipated this will generate more 
referrals for the discretionary grants now available. (4.11)

Amber – areas to watch
 The existing exercise on referral scheme is still running and actively engaging with approx. 100 

participants each quarter. We are working with Wigton Hospital to deliver a localised pilot of the 
Physical Activity Care Pathway. This should engage with an additional 60 - 100 participants. 
Funding of £10,000 is being sought to deliver an initial 12 months. (4.5) 

 Nothing further to update on incentives for landlords to become accredited. Work continues on 
the development of a Housing Enforcement and Compliance Policy. A project overview 
document (POD) has been produced. (4.10b)

 Responsibility for reviewing all emergency reception centres has passed to Cumbria County 
Council and Allerdale BC will assist in identifying and reviewing suitable reception centres. 
(4.12a)

Page 21



10

Key performance indicators (Appendix B)

Green highlights
 Above target leisure centre usage at Workington, Cockermouth and The Wave (KCS03b-d, 

KCS04a-c)
 Workington Leisure Centre usage by target groups well above target (KCS04a, KCS04b, 

KCS04c)
 100% of Discretionary Disability Grants approved within 10 weeks of first inspection date 

(KHH08)

Amber – areas to watch

 Leisure centre usage at Keswick is slightly off target by around 500 visits. Swim lessons and gym 
memberships are at their highest levels, however, the pool is predominantly a tourist facility and 
usage at the beginning and end of the School holidays was slightly below target.  (KCS03a)

 Food safety inspections (Category A-B) slightly below target - reduced staff levels and reactive 
work has led to a small number of A/B rated inspections being carried out later than target 
(KHH10) 

Red – areas of concern
 82% of Disabled Facilities Grants approved within 10 weeks from receipt of referral, a slight 

improvement on Q1 but still below the target of 100% - out of the 38 grants approved in Q2, 7 
were approved outside of the 10 week referral to approval target time. (KHH07)

 The % of programmed private water supplies sampled is behind the targeted position for the end 
of Q2.  No of samples taken are reduced due to staffing issues, but a new plan has been 
produced from now until April 2018. External resource is now in place to assist with the delivery of 
the sampling programme to ensure that our targets are met. (KHH09)

Page 22



11

Creating a sustainable business summary
We aim develop a commercially focused organization committed to delivering high 

quality, sustainable services to the people, communities and businesses of Allerdale

Summary of Quarter 1 position Total Red Amber Green Blue Not 
targeted

Projects/activities 23 0 3 18 2 -
KPIs 21 4 5 9 - 3

Projects/activities (Appendix A)

Blue – completed
 The charge for the collection of commercial recyclates is now fully introduced and the budget 

indications are that the scheme generate the income target figure of 25K. (5.7a)

Green highlights
 The new website contract has been awarded and development is underway with user testing 

planned for late December and a public launch in January, the transactional nature of the website 
will enable customers to interact with the Council easily on-line. (5.1)

 The number of customers registering to use the myAllerdale system continues to increase. During 
2016/17 2593 customers registered on myAllerdale, during the first six months of 2017/18 we have 
signed up another 2674 and are on track to double the number of customers able to report using this 
channel. Over 5000 reports have been submitted since going live in 2016 and there has been a 30% 
increase in self service reports received between Q1 and Q2. (5.2)

 52 council elected members now have tablets and are using them for council meetings and to 
support them in their role as we transition to paperless meetings. (5.3)

 33 new trade waste contracts won since the beginning of the financial year. The service is currently 
forecasting to meet the £25k additional income target. (5.7b)

Amber – areas to watch
 The production of an Information Strategy will not now be complete by end September 2017. 

The Information Strategy has been scheduled to be completed by April 2018 as part of the 
project plan for the General Data Protection Regulation Project.  The Council's suite of 
information security policies have been updated in line with GDPR.  (5.11)

 The government had previously communicated its intentions to move to 100% business rates 
retention by 2019/20. An updated timetable for the implementation of 100% retention of business 
rates and the proposed scheme are not yet available so the impact remains unknown. The 
government has now published an ‘Invitation to Local Authorities in England to pilot 100% Business 
Rates Retention in 2018/19. We will maintain a watching brief to ensure the Council is able to 
understand and plan for this move. (5.13b)  

 The HR Advisor has prepared a work force plan addressing succession and workforce planning. 
Draft workforce plan is on hold until the newly appointed HR Manager is in post and has 
reviewed the document.  (5.17)

Page 23



12

Key performance indicators (Appendix B)

Green highlights
 1024 new customer registrations to myAllerdale (KCTC03)

 The newly introduced customer satisfaction survey has produced a satisfaction rate of 88% for 
Q2, above the target of 80% (KCTC06)

 Average no. of ICT support calls logged and average no. of ICT support calls outstanding per day 
both show on target performance and significant improvement from Q1 (KCTC10a and KCTC10b)

 An estimated 112kg of household waste sent to landfill – above target and an improvement on Q2 
2016/17 (KCS02)

Amber – areas to watch
 1.2 working hours lost per month due to major systems downtime over the Q2 period.  Intermittent 

failure caused period of downtime due to failed fibre in building, when replaced service was 
resumed (KCTC12)

 NNDR collection rate slightly below target but higher than same point last year. Still expected to 
achieve annual target (KCTC13)

 Council Tax collection rate very slightly below target, but still expect to achieve the annual target. 
(KCTC14)

 95.9% of invoices paid in 30 days against a target of 98% with an improving trend over the last 2 
quarters – some issues to resolve with prompt receipting of purchase orders when goods/services 
delivered, work ongoing to improve this area is showing results (KFS01)

 An estimated 46.1% of household waste sent for recycling, slightly below target and down on Q2 
last year (KCS01)

Red – areas of concern

 Average speed of answer on calls to 03031231702 at 65 seconds against a target of 45 seconds 
– this has improved considerably from Q1 and is now close to achieving target (KCTC04)

 Abandoned calls rate at 8% against a target of 7% - performance has improved since Q1 and are 
very close to achieving target. (KCTC05)

 3129 website unique page views per day, below target of 3500. There have been some below-
target fluctuations with the data in recent months, which is often reflected in these months. 
(KCTC07)

 Average no. of working days lost to sickness absence per employee per annum was 9.70 at the 
end of Q2 against a target of 7 days.  The annual cumulative figure has increased which has 
been impacted by long term sickness. However, long term sickness has now significantly 
reduced. Overall the total number of days lost to sickness in September was 20% lower than 
August. (KPR01)

Page 24



13

Definitions

Projects/activities Key Performance Indicators

Blue Complete

Green
Everything is on target / satisfactory 
progress is being made / no action 
required

On, or better than, target

Amber
There are concerns over achieving 
deadlines or outputs  / there are issues to 
rectify, but plans are in place to get the 
project back on track

Worse than target (up to 10% variance) 
- some action may be required to 
improve performance

Red
There are significant  concerns over 
achieving outputs / there is serious 
slippage in the timetable / there are major 
issues to rectify

Significantly worse than target (>10% 
variance) – action required to improve 
performance

Appendices
A. Key projects/activities
B. Key performance measures
C. Key corporate risks
D. Outcome measures

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Appendix A - Business Plan 2017/18 Q2 report - activities/projects

Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact Head of 

Service
Portfolio

2017/18
Q1 update

Q1 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q2 update

Q2 RAG 
status

We aim to create a strong, sustainable and vibrant local economy and create jobs
1.1 Adopt a Developer Contributions 

Supplementary Planning Document to 
ensure that new developments include the 
infrastructure improvements necessary to 
support the development

31/05/2017 Reduces the 
potential cost to 
the Council by 
requiring 
developers to 
contribute to the 
provision of 
infrastructure

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Economic Growth Developer Contributions SPD was formally adopted by Full Council 
on 26 July 2017

Green

Developer Contributions SPD was formally adopted by Full Council 
on 26 July 2017. Project is now complete.

Blue

1.2 Implement the ‘strengthening general 
conditions’ growth actions within the Business 
Growth Strategy including supporting local 
entrepreneurial initiatives and reviewing the 
lifecycle of businesses

31/03/2020 Increased 
opportunity to 
generate 
additional 
business rates 
income

Nik Hardy Economic Growth The Council has supported the enhanced delivery of the growth hub 
in Allerdale to ensure that more businesses are able to access 
support. The Council has also held a very positive breakfast briefing 
with some of the largest employers in the Borough. Green

The Council's continued support of the Cumbria Growth Hub has 
ensured that  over 40 businesses have successfully accessed 
business support . This has resulted in 24 jobs being created. The 
necessary agreements to create a loans fund next year are being 
finalised. 

Green

1.3 Implement the Strengthening Manufacturing 
offer actions within the Business Growth 
Strategy such as developing a manufacturing 
forum and large employer engagement

31/03/2020 Increased 
opportunity to 
generate 
additional 
business rates 
income  

Nik Hardy Economic Growth Officers and members have met with a range of manufacturing 
businesses throughout the Borough including hosting a breakfast 
briefing. A number of initiatives are beginning to emerge as a result 
of those meetings including undertaking a skills requirements audit Green

The Council has continued to engage with a number of employers 
throughout the Borough. Large employer breakfast forum 
scheduled for 29th November hosted by New Balance. 

Green

1.4 Work with the Homes and Communities Agency 
to facilitate the development of new sites for 
housing, this may include partnering 
arrangements with developers. Specific targets 
will be set for individual sites once identified. 

31/03/2018 Contribution to 
increased NHB 
and Council Tax

Kevin 
Kerrigan/ 
Nik Hardy/ 
Graeme 
Wilson

Economic Growth/ 
Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

The outcome of the accelerated housing programme bid submitted 
by Allerdale in March 2017 is still unknown, however advice from 
the HCA is the DCLG will be writing directly to LAs, as they have 
undertaken the shortlisting.  It is suggested that LAs will be notified 
shortly.

Amber

HCA have advised (Oct 17) that they are unable to consider 
package of small sites for this programme due to geography and 
viability of sites.  Still progressing Southfield School, Moorclose 
Leisure Centre, Westfield drive Amber

1.5 Undertake formal consultations and submission 
to Secretary of State for examination prior to 
adoption of Local Plan Part 2 in July 2018 to 
identify sites for development and support 
growth in the borough 

31/07/2018 Contribution to 
increased NHB, 
Council Tax and 
Business Rates

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Economic Growth Review of comments from the preferred options consultation is 
underway. Additional evidence base work, site assessments and 
policy amendments are required. A second focussed preferred 
options consultation maybe necessary prior to publication and 
submission to Secretary of State. 

Green

Review of comments from the preferred options consultation is 
underway. Additional evidence base work, site assessments and 
policy amendments are required. A consultation is planned for 
November concentrating on additional site submitted earlier in the 
year. 

Green

Strengthening our economy

P
age 27



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact Head of 

Service
Portfolio

2017/18
Q1 update

Q1 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q2 update

Q2 RAG 
status

1.6 Deliver actions to develop new market and 
affordable housing as set out in the Housing 
Strategy including:
 Supporting developers to provide a range of 
options to deliver affordable housing through 
HCA schemes
 Maximising housing opportunities to drive 
economic growth
 Developing partnerships to deliver new 
housing
Using Council assets to deliver housing

31/03/2021 Contribution to 
increased NHB 
and Council Tax

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

1. Housing Development Team are looking at planning applications 
that are due to expire and sites are stalled.  This will provide the 
team the opportunity to make contact with private sector develpers 
to help understand stalled site issues where funding is a factor.  We 
will work with them to look at opportunities to sign-post to HCA to 
assist in accessing SME funding, or other HCA funding streams.  
During Q1 we have had no requests from the HCA to support 
development through Social Housing Landlords (RPs) in Allerdale. 
We will continue to meet with them (RPs) to understand why this is.  
2. The Council provided capital funding to support the works to 
enable a property on Harrington Road to be retained in social 
housing for the next 5 years providing 4 units of accommodation.  
The Council has also funded the rental element of the project for 
12months upto Feb 2018.  This property has been occupied by 
Health professionals (GP trainees) as part of a key worker project.  
3.  Westfield Dr, working with WFHA/Two Castels to evaluate 
viability of site & discussion with HCA for potential funding to carry 
out surveys and clear-up ofsite.  Also waiting for DCLG to confirm 
outcome of bid to the Accelerated Housing Programme.
4. Maryport WC is progressing.  Project group set up to take this 
conversion forward.   

Green

1. Housing Development Team have now received an up to date 
list of developers applications that are due to expire and sites are 
stalled.  This will provide the team the opportunity to make contact 
with private sector developers to help understand stalled site 
issues where funding is a factor.  We will work with them to look at 
opportunities to sign-post to HCA to assist in accessing SME 
funding, or other HCA funding streams.  During Q2 we have had 
no requests from the HCA to support development through Social 
Housing Landlords (RPs) in Allerdale. We will continue to meet 
with them (RPs) to understand why this is.  
2. The Council provided capital funding to support the works to 
enable a prperty to be retained in social housing for the next 5 
years providing a family home for a young couple who are working 
in the Ambulance services as paramedics in the area.   
3.  Westfield Dr, working with WFHA/Two Castles to evaluate 
viability of site & discussion with HCA for potential funding to carry 
out surveys and clear-up of site.  HCA are currently working on 
due diligence through the Accelerated Housing Programme.
4. Maryport WC is progressing.  Completed tender exercise for 
contracts to carry out the work in Sept 2017.  

Green

1.7 Undertake an assessment of the impact of 
100% retention of business rates so that the 
Council can fully understand and plan for the 
implications in our Medium Term Financial Plan

31/03/2019 Catherine 
Nicholson

Corporate 
Resources

The government had previously communicated its intentions to 
move to 100% business rates retention by 2019/20. This is now 
likely to be delayed following the general election but no updated 
timetable has been released. This move will see a number of 
changes to the current business rate retention scheme and will 
impact on the income received from business rates. The proposed 
scheme is not yet available for review and so the impact is not yet 
known, but from the information already provided this may result in 
a reduction to the MTFP projects previously provided.
To ensure the Council is able to understand and plan for this move 
the finance team are: maintaining a watching brief over government 
publications; receiving announcements and briefings issued by 
industry experts; attending training and briefing session provided by 
industry experts; liaising with other Cumbrian authorities; attending 
regular meetings of the Cumbria business rates pool. 
Estimates of the potential income from business rates are produced 
by the finance team and are regularly updated as new updated 
information becomes available. These estimates will then be used 
when producing the Medium Term Financial Plan for the budget 
setting process.

Amber

An updated timetable for the implementation of 100% retention of 
business rates and the proposed scheme are not yet available so 
the impact remains unknown.  On 1 September the government 
published an ‘Invitation to Local Authorities in England to pilot 
100% Business Rates Retention in 2018/19. This pilot will further 
inform options for the future design of local government finance, in 
particular the technical aspects of the design of any national 
system of business rates retention. This will also allow for the 
testing of issues relating to administration, technical planning, 
accounting, data collection and IT systems.
Regardless of whether Cumbria take the decision to participate in 
the Pilot scheme we will maintain a watching brief to ensure the 
Council is able to understand and plan for this move.

Amber

We aim to reduce poverty and support people facing financial difficulties
2.1 Deliver the increasing wider employment 

actions within the Business Growth Strategy to 
gain a better understanding of the issues facing 
an under-represented group in Allerdale’s 
workforce and activity to encourage more 
women into business.

31/03/2020 Longer term 
reduction in 
expenditure 
supporting 
vulnerable groups

Nik Hardy Economic Growth Plans are being developed to identify lead officers to take forward 
the key actions within the business growth strategy and  initial 
scoping discussions have taken place regarding specific research 
that may have to be undertaken, such as those around childcare. Green

Work continues to progress over a number workstreams. More 
detailed work into women returners to the job market is currently 
being scoped with external support and additional work is being 
finalised for the survey of childcare provision. Green

2.2 Work with partners to ensure that there is a 
network of support for young people to enhance 
their employability (Business Growth Strategy – 
Strengthening Manufacturing priority actions) 

31/03/2018 Longer term 
reduction in 
expenditure 
supporting 
vulnerable groups

Nik Hardy Economic Growth The Council continues to gather intelligence and work with, support 
and monitor the implementation of the ESIF programmes and are 
seeking to ensure that there are no gaps in provision.

Green

Working with BEC Business Cluster Socio Economic Group to 
continue working with schools and employers. 

Green

Tackling inequality

P
age 28



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact Head of 

Service
Portfolio

2017/18
Q1 update

Q1 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q2 update

Q2 RAG 
status

2.3 Deliver the Tackling Poverty Strategy action 
plan including:
 Supporting schemes such as the Foodbank to 
help those in greatest need
 Working in partnership with the LEP to deliver 
significant EU funded programmes to create 
pathways into employment
 Supporting advice and advocacy services 
 Building financial capability and resilience 
through debt advice and other support

31/12/2020 Paul Wood / 
Nik Hardy

Economic Growth/ 
Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing / 
Transformation

Overview and Scrutiny Committee have set up a Task and Finish 
group to undertake a review of the draft Tackling Poverty Strategy 
and consider appropriate future  actions that the Council should 
take to tackle poverty across the borough.  A successful seminar 
was held in June with representatives from partner agencies to 
share knowledge about the activities of those currently working to 
address poverty.
The Council continues to support a range of services to help those 
in greatest need such as Foodbank and various advice and 
advocacy services.   Customer Operations have been delivering 
budgeting support to Universal Credit customers and referring to 
approved partners for more specialist support.  

Green

The Task and Finish group (TFG) set up by Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee have been undertaking a review of the draft Tackling 
Poverty Strategy and considering appropriate future actions that 
the Council should take to tackle poverty across the borough. The 
TFG are now preparing their report and recommendations for the 
Overview and Scrutiny committee to consider in December.
Executive considered and approved funding in September to 
support the West Cumbria Credit Union and the work that they are 
doing to build financial resilience and support those on low 
incomes through offering more affordable loans.

Green

2.4 Deliver the objective to develop affordable 
housing in the Housing Strategy including:

31/03/2021 Increased 
contribution to 

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

2.4a Empowering communities to deliver 
affordable housing through Community Land 
Trusts

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

1. Calvert way development delivered 22units split between rents 
(11) and shared ownership (11) through KCHT and the site was 
complete in May 2017, 2.  Above Derwent CLT seeking to purchase 
two sites.  Pow Wood - which could provide up to 5 units if planning 
consent can be obtained from LDNP.  Powter Howe, can provide 
up to 7 units.  Purchase of land will be subject to seeking planning 
approval.  The Community Led Housing Officers vacancies were 
advertised.

Green

1. New grant application for Community housing funding went live 
in September 2017.  Three types of grants available: small grants 
up to £1,000, medium grants up to £10,000 and large grants 
exceed £10,000.  Grants can be for revenue or capital funding.  An 
evaluation process is in place which is managed by the Housing 
Development Manager, and sign-off will be determined on officer 
authorisation levels.  The Council has received its first revenue 
funding application from Above Derwent CLT in September 2017.  
This funding will support the group in going some way to support 
their opportunities to develop Pow Wood, Portinscale.    
Information about Community Housing Grants is now available on 
the Council website and can be applied for using the on-line 
process.  The Housing Development Team are also working with 
Caldbeck to look at opportunities to establish a group in this area, 
and initial discussions with Keswick Youth Group have also taken 
place.

Green

2.4b Supporting developers to provide a range of 
options to deliver affordable housing through 
HCA schemes

2/3 new 
CLTs 
established 
by 2021

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Above Derwent CLT now formerly established as a Co-operative.

Green

Using the up to date list of developers applications that are due to 
expire and sites are stalled the team are looking to contact 
developers where sites may benefit from progressing via referral to 
HCA as SMEs.  

Amber

2.4c Proactive work with RPs to evaluate 
allocations for housing to ensure there is a 
fair and transparent approach to support 
those in greatest housing need

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Local Lettings Policy was updated in March 2017.  This followed a 
workshop delivered by Allerdale BC/LDNP to support RPs in the 
allocation of housing where there is a local lettings policy in place. Green

Provided advice to both Home Group and Castles & Coasts on 
application of the LLP policy

Green

2.4d Maximising affordable housing provision 
through early discussion/negotiation with 
planning officers and developers

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Liaise with colleague on 3 large sites, Seaton, Cockermouth x 2, 
Maryport.

Green

Attended 3 developer meeting during this quarter.  1. Story's 2. 
Home group development.  3.  Kirkcross development.

Green

2.5 Deliver the actions in the Housing Strategy to 
reduce or prevent homelessness including:
Undertaking early preventative work
Reviewing temporary homeless 
accommodation to ensure resource matches 
demand
Exploring options to provide a full emergency 
accommodation service for single non-priority 
homeless

31/03/2021 Contribute 
towards reduction 
in temporary 
accommodation 
costs

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Working to towards requirements of the Homelessness Reduction 
Act (due to commence in April 2018) with a continued focus on 
prevention and development of systems and processes to meet the 
new requirements.

Green

Work progressing to bring the service into line with the new 
Homelessness Reduction Act which starts in April 2018.

Green

2.6 Engage with Cumbria County Council to 
facilitate Syrian refugee resettlement in 
Allerdale

Resettle 5 
families by 
31/3/2018

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Working with Cumbria County Council and Registered Providers to 
facilitate refugee resettlement through identifying suitable 
properties.  First resettlement now likely to be January 2018.

Green

Next flight of refugees due in January 2018. Contact with County 
ongoing.

Green

2.7 Undertake a programme of activity to 
address fuel poverty and affordable warmth 
including:

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

P
age 29



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact Head of 

Service
Portfolio

2017/18
Q1 update

Q1 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q2 update

Q2 RAG 
status

2.7a Running the Big Allerdale Switch three times 
a year and targeting towards our deprived 
neighbourhoods

Feb, May 
Oct 2017

Income generated 
from no. of 
registrants that 
switch 

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

There were 355 complete registrations for the May Auction. 103 
registrants accepted their offer. The average saving per registrant 
was £197.22 and 83.7% of registrants could save. In order to target 
specific areas where registrations have been low and in areas with 
higher levels of fuel poverty, leaflets were distributed by LDS Ltd. 
The targeted areas were Wigton, Keswick, Maryport and 
Workington which was a total of 18,665 properties.

Green

The summer Big Allerdale Switch was launched on 8th August 
2017. Social media messages have been continuous throughout 
the registration period. A live radio interview with BBC Radio 
Cumbria took place on the day of the launch. Members of 
the Housing and Health team have also attended numerous 
events in the area to promote the scheme. The auction takes 
place on 10th October 2017 and to date 219 households have 
registered. Income from the February 2017 Auction was received 
in August and equated to £823.50.

Green

2.7b Introduction of Discretionary Safe and Warm 
Grants

From April 
2017

Income generated 
from ABC fee 
(10%)

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

The Housing Grants and Assistance Policy was approved in April 
and during Q1 the team have been setting up processes, 
application forms and paperwork relating to the Safe and 
Warm Grants. Any enquiry received by the team has been logged 
and 32 enquiry forms have been returned with potentially eligible 
applicants. The delivery of the grants will commence on 1st July 
2017

Green

The introduction of the discretionary Safe and Warm Grants 
commenced in July. In this quarter 2 Safe and Warm Grants have 
been approved and 22 new cases are in the pipeline. Of the 2 
grants approved 1 has been completed and a 
vulnerable household has benefited from a replacement heating 
system that they would have otherwise been unable to afford to 
replace.

Green

2.8 Target Council apprenticeships to people 
from priority areas to provide targeted 
employment opportunities 

31/12/2017 Sue 
Stanhope

Governance & 
People Resources

The new apprenticeship levy came into effect in April 2017. Any 
organisation with an annual pay bill in excess of £3m, will have to 
pay the levy. The levy money can only be used for apprentice 
training. A report around the spend of the levy has been shared 
with SMT. Next phase is to identify where to spend the levy to 
appropriately upskill in line with the organisations direction of travel.

Green

The levy money is now being utilised to fund a number of 
apprenticeships for existing employees. These include; Project 
Management, AAT and Building Surveying. There are also 
proposals to introduce a Pest Control Apprentice in the coming 
months. Conversations continue with managers to identify areas 
where we can utilise the levy. Where external recruitment to 
apprenticeships is taking place, we will endeavour to target people 
from priority areas within the Borough. 

Green

We aim to create thriving towns that are attractive and welcoming, and retain their distinctive characters
3.1 Implement the ‘Improve the vitality of 

Allerdale’s local centres’ actions within the 
Business Growth Strategy including the 
development of a Maryport Regeneration Plan 

31/03/2018 Increased 
opportunity to 
generate 
additional 
business rates 
income and 
reduce costs 
associated with 
areas of decline

Nik Hardy Economic Growth Arrup have been commissioned to develop the Maryport 
Regeneration Plan and have started the desk top element of the 
study. This will be followed later in the summer with wider 
consultation on proposals. The Council continues to support the 
development of a number of events within the town centres such as 
the International Food Festival. Plans to survey town centre 
retailers are being progressed. Officers are currently assessing the 
purple flag scheme and its potential benefit to Allerdale's town 
centres. 

Green

The Maryport plan has progressed and the consultants are now 
ready to broaden their consultation on suggested activities 
contained within the report. Meetings have been held with night 
time economy businesses in Workington as the Council seeks to 
consider the Purple Flag process. Green

3.2 Implement the new approach to the tourism 
offer actions within the Business Growth Plan 
including branding activity, website 
development, and promotional materials

31/03/2020 Increased 
opportunity to 
generate 
additional 
business rates 
income 

Nik Hardy Tourism and 
Culture

Nicepond have been commissioned to undertake the development 
of  a brand strategy and design guide for future promotional 
materials. This will form the basis for a specific destination website 
in the future. Plans to improve events calendars are being 
discussed. 

Green

The Destination Manager post has been advertised. A revised 
visitor guide is taking shape and will form part of the promotional 
materials at the Group Travel Show.

Green

3.3 Continue to support the development of 
coastal communities teams and the 
implementation of their economic plans

31/03/2018 Increased 
opportunity to 
generate 
additional 
business rates 
income and 
reduce costs 
associated with 
areas of decline

Nik Hardy Tourism and 
Culture

Further to the award of the Coastal Communities Funding for the 
Silloth to Allonby cyclepath officers are working hard to reprofile the 
scheme to the available funding envelope whilst exploring 
alternative options for match funding such as ERDF.

Amber

Maryport Area CCT meeting to revitalise the group and to consider 
projects for next funding round scheduled for 3 October, Silloth 
CCT scheduled for 9 October

Green

Enhancing our towns

P
age 30



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact Head of 

Service
Portfolio

2017/18
Q1 update

Q1 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q2 update

Q2 RAG 
status

3.4 Implementing the actions contained within the 
Heritage Strategy to develop a Heritage 
Forum for Allerdale, examine the impact of 
heritage on council services and conduct an 
impact assessment for heritage in Allerdale

31/03/2018 Potential 
reduction in long 
term maintenance 
of heritage assets

Nik Hardy Tourism and 
Culture

An expression of interest for a THI scheme in Wigton was 
submitted to Heritage Lottery,. However, further to advice from from 
Heritage Lottery the application is postponed submitting a placed-
based heritage funding bid for Wigton until the New Year, when it 
can be aligned with the new HLF programme. They expect the final 
round of the current Townscape Heritage programme to be the 
most competitive they have ever experienced, with 5 fully-
developed bids already having been submitted. As in previous 
years, they expect only 1 bid from the North West region to be 
successful.

Green

HLF has asked the Council to hold potential bids over until the next 
bidding round in 2018.  This is because it is already 
oversubscribed with 'shovel-ready' projects and ours is not at that 
stage yet for Wigton. The Destination Manager post has been 
advertised

Green

3.5 Undertake Capital Development Works to 
Helena Thompson Museum to enhance the 
heritage offer in Workington and make the 
museum more sustainable for the future

31/03/2018 Catherine 
Nicholson

Tourism and 
Culture

Following a recommendation from the Commercial Board and SMT 
the management of capital projects are now overseen by Property 
Services.  There are currently some outstanding issues with the 
approved contractor that need to be resolved before this scheme 
can move forward.  Discussions are also taking place between the 
Town Council, Allerdale Council and the management group at the 
Museum to secure the best way forward.

Red

Development works to be re-tendered following Chief Exec's 
meeting with WHG. Alternative means of procurement to be 
identified

Green

3.6 Deliver a programme of Spring Cleans in our 
local areas with volunteers to improve local 
environmental quality and introduce new ‘Hit 
Squad’ to specifically target hotspots identified 
through local intelligence

8 spring 
cleans by 
Sept 2017
Hit Squad in 
place by 
June 2017

Increased 
investment 
income 

Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

Spring cleans have been planned and delivered in Maryport, 
Workington, Aspatria, Silloth and Seaton. Assistance has been 
provided in helping to plan and implement clean up’s with local 
volunteer groups in the area for example coastal clean-up. Green

The Environmental Hit Squad apprenticeship team is now 
established and is deployed to improve environmental quality and 
provide NVQ level 2 qualification in Cleaning and Environmental 
Support Services. Spring cleans have now been delivered in 
Maryport, Workington, Aspatria, Silloth, Seaton, Cockermouth, 
Wigton and Keswick as well as a coastal clean-up carried with 
volunteers. 

Green

3.7 Undertake a targeted programme of zero 
tolerance environmental enforcement in 
areas identified as  litter, dog fouling or fly 
tipping hotspots

15 targeted 
sessions by 
March 2018

Increased 
investment 
income

Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

The enforcement process has been focused upon within the street 
scene team resulting in two penalties for dog fouling and one for 
dog off lead. Green

Additional focus is now placed in this area with 2 Street Scene 
Officers concentrating on full-time on environmental enforcement. 
Focus is being placed on increasing the numbers of fixed penalty 
notices. 

Green

3.8 Deliver activity as part of the Housing Strategy 
to reduce the number of long term empty 
homes including:

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

3.8a Delivering Empty Property Grants 10 grants in 
2017/18 

Fee Generated 
from ABC fee 
(10%)

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

There are 16 empty property grants currently being processed by 
the team. It is expected that these will be completed over the year. 
A request to Council tax for an up to date list of empty properties 
over two years has been placed and once received letters 
promoting the grants will be sent to all.

Green

There are 15 Empty Property Grants that have been approved and 
are awaiting completion and occupation. 1 Empty property grant 
has been completed and is now occupied. A further 16 empty 
property grants are in the pipeline. 50+ letters went out to empty 
home owners (empty for more than 2 years) to inform them of the 
grants. Further letters will go out in October. 

Green

3.8b Undertake an options appraisal for a long term 
derelict property purchased in Maryport and 
deliver preferred option

31/12/2017 Reduction in 
officer time spent 
dealing with 
environmental 
crime

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Prior to the appointed building surveyor inspecting the property, an 
environmental clean up is required. The work was instructed on 
18th May 2017 and works are ongoing to clear the site and make 
the access within the building safe. Essential works to the exterior 
of the dwelling have also been instructed. A project team has been 
set up with relevant service areas represented. A project timetable 
has been produced.  

Amber

All environmental clean up work has now been completed and the 
essential works to the exterior of the dwelling have been 
completed. The building surveyor is now looking to gain 
safe access to all floors of the property to carry out a site survey 
to enable an options appraisal to be undertaken. This work is on 
going. 

Amber

3.9 Continue with a programme of ensuring better 
provision of public toilet facilities through 
upgrading and transferring assets

31/03/2018 Increased short 
term investment 
to reduce 
recurring revenue 
spend

Catherine 
Nicholson

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

Refurbishment works to Main St toilets in Cockermouth are 
complete as well as repair works at Bitterbeck, Harris Park and 
Memorial Gardens. The Town Council are taking over the toilets 
and will introduce a 'pay on entry' system at Main St and Bitterbeck. 
Transfer is expected to be complete by the end of July

Green

The four Cockermouth toilet blocks have now been transferred to 
Cockermouth Town Council.  Braithwaite Toilets have been 
disposed of on a long term lease so that a toilet facility can be 
maintained in the village.

Green

3.10 Assist businesses and homeowners within town 
centres with flood resilience measures

31/03/2018 Ensure stability in 
business rate and 
Council Tax 
income  

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

To ensure stability in business rate and Council Tax income 
continuing to assisting and supporting towns and homeowners with 
flood grants and preparing flood and emergency action plans.

Green

Flood resilience measures still ongoing via the PLR flood grants. 
Community capital grants schemes available via the council. 
Working with Town and Parish Councils and external agencies in 
applying various flood alleviation works as and when required. Green

P
age 31



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact Head of 

Service
Portfolio

2017/18
Q1 update

Q1 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q2 update

Q2 RAG 
status

We aim to help people live healthy and active lives, and reduce health inequalities
4.1 Support the Allerdale Health and Wellbeing 

Forum in addressing health outcomes in 
relation to healthy weight, smoking cessation, 
healthy attitudes towards alcohol, mental 
wellbeing and ageing well 

31/03/2018 Savings in wider 
health economy 
Bringing in 
funding to deliver 
initiatives within 
our communities

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Forum met once. Presentation to Scrutiny on the work of the 
Forum. Joint presentation by members of the Forum at the Allerdale 
tackling inequalities workshop. Till roll campaign commenced on 
where to go for smoking cessation advice in Workington. Rethinking 
drinking project around healthy attitudes towards alcohol ongoing. 
Healthy Hopes holding mental wellbeing sessions in Workington 
and Maryport. Meetings ongoing in Silloth around Healthy 
Communities. Allerdale officers supported the launch of the 
Dementia Action Alliances in Workington and Maryport and 
supported the Workington DAA at party in the park. There have 
been 6 engagement events in the Moss Bay Ward as part of 
CLAHRC - Solway Views.

Green

Forum met 3 times. Till Roll campaign and Rethinking Drinking 
projects ended apart from 4 alcohol inquiries to be completed. 
Evaluation to be done. Suicide awareness courses held around 
district including bespoke session for elected members. Dementia 
Action Alliances (DAAs) being supported, Maryport and 
Cockermouth progressing to be a DAA. Keswick event to promote 
DAA to businesses. Falls prevention week held. Community falls 
prevention worker appointed. Development of a slipper exchange 
scheme. Xgloo used for promotional campaigns on change4life 
and active10 at Cockermouth touch a truck and Taste of Cumbria 
Food Festival. CLAHRC - evaluation of engagement events 
completed, themes developed. Development of a wellbeing advisor 
role for alcohol and smoking. Healthy Communities work in Silloth 
ongoing, planned roll out of breastfeeding friendly scheme. In 
addition Q3 focus on healthy weight declaration, support of 
COMPASS, GLL Healthwise programme and UCLAN research.

Green

4.2 Deliver improvements to leisure facilities 
and open spaces  to encourage active 
participation in physical activity to improve 
health outcomes (Leisure Strategy Action Plan)

31/03/2018 Reduced need to 
fund sport and 
leisure activities. 
Decreased 
expenditure in 
supporting people 
with health related 
illness

Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

Workington Cricket Club have been given financial support to 
improve their future resilience.
We have brought the responsibility for Salterbeck Reservoir and the 
surrounding land back within the Council. Proposals for redesign 
and future maintenance regimes are being worked up to improve 
the site to encourage more people to access it.
Improvement works at Banklands to paths and landscaping have 
taken place through the Workington Nature Partnership.
Formalised support to both Wigton Town Council and Workington 
Rugby Union as part of changing room developments. 

Green

We are continuing to improve the Bankfield site. The Nature 
Partnership Officer has been working with volunteers to plant up 
the raised beds in the Italianate garden. Further work to continue 
in the Spring. 
The costs for the improvement works to Fleming Square are being 
brought together.
Initial plans have been produced identifying the scope for the 
improvements at Brow Top/ Underpass/ Leisure Centre surrounds. 
CCC Highways are being consulted and a  design brief is being 
developed. 
Pitch improvement work has been undertaken at Miltoft in 
Maryport. The next stage will be the improvements on Ennerdale 
Road. 
The new youth recreation area on Jane Pit has been out to tender 
and final contractor will be selected in Q3.

Green

4.3 Develop and deliver programmes to promote 
and facilitate access to sport and leisure  
activities focused on areas of greatest health 
inequalities through the final year of the 
Community Sport Activation Fund 

01/07/2018 Reduced need to 
fund sport and 
leisure activities. 
Decreased 
expenditure in 
supporting people 
with health related 
illness

Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

This project is now complete as of the end of Q1. Just under 4300 
were engaged and introduced to a range of sport and physical 
activity through this funding over the 3 years. Many of the activities 
have become sustainable and will carry on. The total cost of the 
project is estimated at £148,000. Green

This project is now complete as of the end of Q1. Just under 4,300 
were engaged and introduced to a range of sport and physical 
activity through this funding over the 3 years. A number of 
sessions continue to be delivered in the community and as a 
legacy of the project. There are two schemes we hope to develop 
through Sport England applications which will be submitted in Q3. 

Blue

4.4 Work with GLL to develop the leisure offer 
within the Councils leisure facilities, 
increasing usage across all sites, with a focus 
on young people and those at risk of being 
inactive.  

01/07/2018 £20k saving Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

Usage figures are on track to reach the target increase for 17/18. 
Workington still achieving almost 100% more than the same time 
last year. Junior swimming and gymnastics are  record high across 
the sites and new activities are being introduced to the Workington 
programme.
New sessions for adults have been introduced at Cockermouth and 
Workington during Q1 through the Sport England funding target 
those who are least active.

Green

Figures continue to be on track for meeting the 2017/18 targets. 
Figures for those groups identified as being more likely to be 
inactive are consistently higher than expected. 

Green

4.5 Working in partnership to deliver new Physical 
Activity Care Pathway (including exercise on 
referral scheme)

200 people 
accessing 
the new 
exercise on 
referral 
scheme by 
March 2018

Decreased 
expenditure in 
supporting people 
with health related 
illness

Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

The Sport England phase 1 application for this project was not 
successful. Current Exercise on Referral scheme will continue to 
run through GLL (currently around 200 participants engaged) until 
new funding streams identified. Amber

The existing exercise on referral scheme is still running and 
actively engaging with approx. 100 participants each quarter. We 
are working with Wigton Hospital to deliver a localised pilot of the 
Physical Activity Care Pathway. This should engage with an 
additional 60 - 100 participants. Funding of £10,000 is being 
sought to deliver an initial 12 months. 

Amber

Improving health and wellbeing

P
age 32



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact Head of 

Service
Portfolio

2017/18
Q1 update

Q1 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q2 update

Q2 RAG 
status

4.6 Support festivals and events through grants 
support and direct funding for the following 
events and festivals to enhance the vitality and 
raise the profile of the area and offer cultural 
and sporting events to improve health and 
wellbeing: Lakesman; Reboot; Northbound; 
Festival of Running

15 festivals 
and events 
through grant 
support by 
31/03/2018

Increased 
investment 
income 

Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

5 festivals/events have been supported via the festivals & events 
fund this quarter. 
Lakesman Triathlon has taken place as part of the Allerdale Live 
partnership, participant and spectator numbers have increased 
from last year, with each partner receiving £9900 return profit  & an 
estimated economic impact of £1.48million to the area. 
Financial support also given to Chillifest which took part in May.

Green

To date 10 Festivals and events have been supported this year. 
Reboot, Northbound and Cockermouth Taste Festivals have taken 
place this quarter as part of the Allerdale Live Partnership. Reboot 
attracted around 700 people, a significant increase on last year. 
Northbound festival in Cockermouth enjoyed an increase in visitors 
with around 10,000 people reported to have visited, a 25% 
increase on the last event. Direct economic benefit to the town is 
estimated to be around £400k. Cockermouth Taste food festival 
attracted around 40,000 visitors with an estimated economic 
impact of approx. £1.97m. The festivals and events fund is on 
track to fund at least 15 festivals and events this year.
The Lakesman 2018 full and half distance races are now sold out.

Green

4.7 Undertake a programme of improvements to 
our nature reserves and open spaces to 
encourage access to and enjoyment of open 
spaces and conservation of the natural 
environment:

31/03/2018 Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

4.7a Delivery of Harrington Reservoir Nature 
Reserve restoration project. Funding to be 
sourced by July 2017 

31/03/2018 Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

WREN application has been approved, contributing £50K towards 
the project. 
Awaiting Big Lottery funding application outcome due in July. Green

The team are now considering potential funding sources including 
Awards for All and the Tesco token scheme. Decisions are 
expected by the end November. The project can still go ahead, but 
on a reduced scale if the above funding is not awarded. The Bid 
Lottery Application was not awarded. 

Green

4.7b Delivery of Siddick Pond Nature Reserve 
access improvements phase 2

30/09/2018 Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

Specification sent out to suppliers for the implementation of the 
exhibition and interpretation works. Reed bed management and 
green roof installation will start in the Autumn

Green

Reedbed Management booked in to take place on 16-18th October 
2017
Bird Hide Exhibition draft design has been done and requires 
feedback. A Siddick Pond Blog is being developed as part of 
project.
The bird nesting raft is being “floated” during w/c 16th October.

Green

4.7c Submission of a Stage 1 application to HLF for 
a Parks for People grant to improve Workington 
Hall Parklands.

28/02/2018 Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

Expression of Interest has been approved by HLF. Stage 1 
application to be submitted by February 2018.
Costing and proposal being sought for professional support to 
prepare stage 1 bid. 

Green

HLF Grants officer has advised on the further work that would be 
needed to progress to a Stage 1 application linked directly to the 
HLF “Parks for People” programme Outcomes.
Quotes for developing and submitting a stage 1 application have 
been received. 

Green

4.8 Deliver an environmental educational and 
events programme with schools and 
community groups, raising the profile of key 
environmental sites and open spaces

25 events/ 
education 
days by 
March 2018 

Reduction in 
environmental 
clean-up costs

Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

9 educational sessions delivered with local schools and community 
groups. 

Green

There have been a number of educational, development and 
training days delivered across a range of different community 
groups during Q2;
- 19 educational visits to Harrington Nature Reserve.
- Worked with St Mary’s/St Michael’s Cub Scouts working towards 
their Naturalist badge
-  2 bat study nights have been held at Siddick Ponds
-  2 Marine Conservation Society Great British Beach Cleans have 
taken place with around 40 volunteers
- Hosted 2 work experience students from Cockermouth School for 
1 week in Summer
- 30 hours work placement with 24 NCS (National Citizen Service) 
students fulfilling their Social Action Project part of the award
- Workington Academy Sixth form (40 students) spent a morning 
Balsam bashing
- Currently providing learning opportunities for the FCC 
apprentices.

Green

Reduction in long 
term maintenance 
costs. Income 
through 
investment into 
area

P
age 33



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact Head of 

Service
Portfolio

2017/18
Q1 update

Q1 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q2 update

Q2 RAG 
status

4.9 Improve the environmental quality of our 
beaches through delivery of our Beach 
Management Plan and taking part in the 
LovemyBeach campaign.  Through this work 
we intend as a minimum to maintain a bathing 
water classification of “sufficient” at Allonby and 
aim to achieve a classification of “good”.

31/03/2018 Reduction in 
environmental 
clean-up costs

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Continue to work with Community Services to ensure delivery of the 
current Beach Management Plan and make revisions when 
necessary to maintain the environmental quality of our beaches. 
We are committed to promoting and working with businesses in the 
coastal areas of Allerdale to sign up to LOVEmyBEACH campaign. 
We continue to participate in the Environment Agency Pollution 
Risk Forecasting system with a view to maintaining a bathing water 
classification of "Sufficient". We are currently installing our 
electronic sign for notifications of bathing water quality at Allonby 
Green.

Green

During the bathing water season(May- Sept) we have continued to 
participate in the Pollution Risk Forecast system devised. 
We have signed up businesses in the Allonby area to the 
LOVEmyBEACH campaign and continue to carry out promotion 
work at community events.
Continue to work with Community Services to ensure delivery of 
the current Beach Management Plan and make revisions when 
necessary to maintain the environmental quality of our beaches.
We have continued to participate in the Environment Agency 
Pollution Risk Forecasting System for this bathing water season, 
we aim to maintain our current bathing water classification of 
"sufficient", however the new classifications will be announced in 
November.
Electronic sign for notifications of bathing water quality is now 
installed at Allonby Green.

Green

4.10 Deliver activity in the Housing Strategy to raise 
standards in the private rented sector 
including:

31/03/2021 Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

4.10a Landlord training events 3 per year Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

The National Landlord Association (NLA) have been contacted to 
arrange dates for landlord training events

Green

2 landlord training events have been booked with the National 
Landlords Association. these include: Planning Successful 
Investment 10th November and Safer Homes on 19th January 
2018. 

Green

4.10b Developing and implementing incentives for 
landlords to become accredited 

30/06/2017 Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Research has been undertaken and a report produced on possible 
landlord accreditation incentives. It has been agreed to put this 
area of work on hold and include as part of the revision of the 
Housing Enforcement Policy. 

Amber

Nothing further to update on incentives for landlords to become 
accredited. Work continues on the development of a Housing 
Enforcement and Compliance Policy. A project overview document 
(POD) has been produced.

Amber

4.10c Review and revision of Housing Enforcement 
Policy

30/09/2017 Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

The Housing and Planning Act 2016 has introduced new 
enforcement powers available to the Local Authority. Guidance on 
the new powers has been limited to date however, the team have 
progressed the review of the Housing Enforcement Policy and will 
develop a revised version once statutory guidance is released. 

Green

The development of the Housing and Enforcement Policy is well 
underway. A POD has now been produced and a PID will follow to 
help take the work forward and ensure timescales are meet.  

Green

4.11 Deliver Housing Grants Assistance 
programme to help reduce admissions to 
hospital, need for transfer to residential home 
and delayed discharge from hospital, and to 
increase the number of decent homes in the 
Borough: 
- Implement, promote and deliver Discretionary 
Grants (including Safe and Warm Grant) 
- Promote and deliver Disabled Facilities Grants 

Apr 2017 
onwards

Income from ABC 
fee (10%)

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

The Housing Grants and Assistance Policy was approved in April 
and during Q1 the team have been setting up processes, 
application forms and paperwork relating to the Discretionary 
Grants. Any enquiry received by the team has been logged and 32 
enquiry forms have been returned with potentially eligible 
applicants. The delivery of the grants will commence on 1st July 
2017.
Allerdale worked with Carlisle City Council and South Lakeland 
District Council to implement a shared framework for adaptations. 
This was put in place just after the 1st April and since then the 
team have been meeting with the contractors to agree working 
practices. This will speed up the Disabled Facility Grant 
(DFG) delivery times as well as provide value for money. The team 
have attended various meetings and events to promote all grants 
available including a DFG/Independent Living Roadshow in June 
and Dementia Action Alliance Launches in Workington and 
Aspatria.  

Green

The introduction of 4 new grant products commenced in July. The 
team have approved and completed 1 DFG Top up Grant, 2 DFG 
Relocation Grants are in the pipeline, 6 Discretionary Disability 
Grants have been approved and 7 are in the pipeline and 2 Safe 
and Warm Grants have been approved and 22 are in the pipeline. 
The budget spend and commitment is currently £38,553.65. The 
successful recruitment of a Housing OT (secondment from 
Cumbria County Council) took place in September. The Housing 
OT will start on 20th November for a period of 6 months. It is 
anticipated this will generate more referrals for the discretionary 
grants now available. The team attended all Falls Prevention 
roadshows in Libraries across the borough as well as a Flu Jab 
drop in event in Maryport. The promotional material has now been 
produced and will be distributed to the appropriate venues.

Green

4.12 Undertake activity with partners to improve 
flooding resilience across Allerdale including:

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

Working in consultation with partners including the Environmental 
Agency and various flood action groups to carry on improving flood 
and emergency resilience

Working in partnership with the Environment Agency and Cumbria 
County Council in delivering flood resilience measures and 
assisting with varying funding streams

4.12a Reviewing all Emergency Reception Centres Apr 2017 
onwards

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

We are working alongside Cumbria County Council (who have lead 
responsibility on this) to revise and review all emergency reception 
centres within Allerdale.

Green

This responsibility has been passed to Cumbria CC and Allerdale 
will assist in identifying and reviewing suitable reception centres Amber

Possible income 
from fixed 
penalties 
(enforcement)

P
age 34



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact Head of 

Service
Portfolio

2017/18
Q1 update

Q1 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q2 update

Q2 RAG 
status

4.12b Continuing to administer the Flood Resilience 
Grant programme ensuring that at least 65% of 
eligible households apply for the grant  

30/06/2017 Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

The deadline for receiving grants has been extended to end 
September 2017 and we still have a dedicated team established for 
the administration of the PLR flood grants. Green

The deadline for paying invoices was end September 2017 
although DCLG and CCC are carrying on administering payments 
due to ongoing problems with contractors Green

4.12c Delivering a funding programme for small to 
medium flood prevention work in our 
communities using £100k fund created by the 
Council.

Allocate 
funding by 
31/03/2018

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health & 
Wellbeing

We have established a concise administration process which is 
now posted on LinkedIn for applications for community flood grants. 
Two payments have been authorised to date. Green

System of application forms and accompanying information 
established and information cascaded to all communities within 
Allerdale. Currently £15k has been cascaded. Green

Creating a sustainable business
We aim to develop a commercially focused organisation committed to delivering high quality, sustainable services to the people, communities and businesses of Allerdale
5.1 Deliver the Customer Access Strategy to 

improve the service we deliver to customers 
through improving service consistency, 
delivering right first time and improving the use 
of customer intelligence to develop and design 
the service. Promote self-service where 
appropriate to streamline processes between 
customer and the organisation.

31/03/2019 Reduced 
expenditure 
through more 
efficient 
processes 

Paul Wood Transformation Customer service improvement programme is established and a 
number of workstreams are in progress, these include further 
development of myAllerdale as detailed in 5.2, the channel shift 
programme, mobile working for visiting officers, process reviews 
across Customer Operations front and back office functions.                                                                                   
Procurement of a new website which will be a transactional website 
design is underway with contracts about to be awarded. Green

The new website contract has been awarded and development is 
underway with user testing planned for late December and a public 
launch in January, the transactional nature of the website will 
enable customers to interact with the Council easily on-line.
Development of the myAllerdale on-line reporting service continues 
to grow the service as outlined in 5.2. The strategy of moving to 
self-service is helping to improve the telephone service with a 10% 
reduction in calls, and the abandoned call rate reduced from 19% 
down to 8% compared to Q2 2016/17
The strategy of moving systems to the cloud continues with GIS 
and Parking systems next to migrate.

Green

5.2 Undertake a Channel shift programme to 
significantly increase the use of online and self-
service channels

31/03/2020 Overall reduction 
in CSC cost per 
transaction £50k

Paul Wood Transformation Considerable work has been undertaken to further develop the 
myAllerdale platform. This has concentrated on issues which are 
easily reported online and account for a number of telephony 
calls. Therefore customers can now report missing or damaged 
bins, as well as missed bins online or through the app. We have 
also developed new forms which allow users to tell us things such 
as complaints about a taxi driver, food hygiene concerns and 
similar. This is on the app. Sign-ups to the myAllerdale service have 
continued at around 250 people a month. We have also been 
promoting the app in many ways including advertising via social 
media as well as in local publications. Leaflets were also distributed 
at the opening days of the multi-storey car park. We are also 
promoting the self-service PCs at our offices. Promotion and 
development of the app and online forms is ongoing.

Green

The number of customers registering to use the myAllerdale 
system continues to increase, from an average of 250 per month 
during Q1 up to an average of 350 per month in Q2. During 
2016/17 2593 customers registered on myAllerdale, during the first 
six months of 2017/18 we have signed up another 2674 and are 
on track to double the number of customers able to report using 
this channel. Over 5000 reports have been submitted since going 
live in 2016 and there has been a 30% increase in self service 
reports received between Q1 and Q2. 

Green

5.3 Undertake a programme of service reviews 
to deliver business efficiencies and service 
improvements through greater business 
process automation 

31/03/2018 £25k saving Paul Wood Transformation Service Reviews – Print Review Completed in Quarter 1 for Hybrid, 
Multi-Function Printers and Tender for bulk Printing.  These have all 
helped in identifying savings as well as efficiencies in reducing 
processes and staff time. My Allerdale - Customer now able to 
make referrals for street cleaning directly to the Contractor.  This 
has enabled reporting at the weekends to be followed up.  Online 
Grants process - Voluntary sector organisations can now apply for 
a grant online.  This meets our regulatory requirements for 
transparency.  Fleet Review continued in quarter 1.  Some quick 
wins achieved in this quarter like an online form to record vehicle 
checks.  This ensures the Council meets its Duty of Care 
responsibilities.  

Green

Next phase- Print Review. There are now 52 council elected 
members who have tablets and are using them for council 
meetings and to support them in their role in place of paper 
agendas.  There has been training and guidance notes devised for 
all elected members in the transition to paperless.  Initially there 
will be printed copies and tablets so any savings will be quite 
modest to begin with.  However by December (Q3) executive have 
agreed that full Council will be the first paperless meeting (apart 
from some papers for members of the public) so will start to 
monitor budget reduction for print and postage.  Mobile Worker – 
Contractor staff starting using mobile devices 18th September for 
street cleansing.  Customer queries raised on MyAllerdale are 
being dealt with over the weekend (previously only allocated 
Monday – Friday).  Fleet Review Tender evaluation completed for 
new fleet, report gone to SMT.  Report going to executive 8th 
November (Q3) as this is a key decision.  Agree transition to new 
fleet and objectives for monitoring and utilising fleet more 
effectively.   

Green

P
age 35



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact Head of 

Service
Portfolio

2017/18
Q1 update

Q1 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q2 update

Q2 RAG 
status

5.4 Carry out business process review of 
Development Services and implement new 
Land and Property system to improve 
efficiency and reduce costs

Implement 
new system 
by 
31/03/2018

Kevin 
Kerrigan / 
Paul Wood

Transformation/ 
Economic Growth

5 suppliers have been shortlisted to provide written proposals and 
presentations for evaluation. Only 4 suppliers have provided written 
proposals, one supplier has withdrawn from the process. The 
written proposals and presentations will be evaluated by an 
evaluation panel early August

Green

 Evaluation of 4 suppliers completed. The report was taken to 
Executive Panel recommending the award of contract to Supplier 1 
(Arcus Global Ltd). Executive Panel agreed recommendation. 
Delay in awarding contract, undertaking financial review of supplier 
with view to signing contracts mid-October.

Green

5.5 Continue to review procurement procedures 
and practices to ensure best value for 
services and goods procured 

31/03/2018 £50k saving Paul Wood Transformation Procurement Activity – Procurement savings achieved balance is 
£3,620 outstanding.  Savings from print, mail and global payments.  
Procurement Code and associated templates and documents 
circulated to all staff for guidance and information in how to carry 
out a procurement exercise.  

Green

Procurement – New draft Strategic Commissioning and 
Procurement Strategy circulated to Transformation and 
Commissioning Board for comments.  Once new Strategy and 
accompanying Procurement code is agreed will be taking to 
executive for adoption.  

Green

5.6 Plan for the end of the current waste and 
recycling, street cleansing and grounds 
maintenance contracts in 2019 by undertaking 
strategic review work including a new 
Business Model Options Appraisal 

30/06/2017 Reduced 
expenditure 
through more 
efficient operating 
model and 
increased income 
through trade 
waste services 

Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

Strategic review including Business Model Option Appraisal 
undertaken in Q1 and presented to the Executive on 10 May 2017. 
Executive resolved to approve the report and the results of the 
service delivery model option appraisal exercise; and approve the 
procurement of a performance based services (Option 1 – 
Contractor) for waste and recycling collection, recycling 
reprocessing, street cleansing and grounds maintenance all of 
which shall commence on 1 April 2019.

Green

Initial selection stage process undertaken. Contract OJEU 
document preparation prior to competitive dialogue process 
planned for Q3. Engagement with Scrutiny in the process 
commenced in Q2.

Green

5.7 Increase income from waste services 
through:

Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 

5.7a Introduction of a charge for Commercial 
Recycling

30/04/2017 £25k Income 
target

Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

We have now invoiced for the service provided to collect and 
reprocess commercial recycling in quarter 1. We will be working 
with customers over the coming months to further develop the 
service meeting the needs of our customers. 

Green

The charge for the collection of commercial recyclates is now fully 
introduced and the budget indications are that the scheme 
generate the income target figure of 25K. Blue

5.7b Undertaking market analysis and promotional 
activity to increase income from Trade Waste

31/03/2018 £25k Income 
target

Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

Work has started on market analysis and targeting growth to 
increase the trade waste customer base. Focus will be directed 
towards securing contracts from town centre businesses in the 
coming months with a view to making a positive budget impact of 
£25k.

Green

Numbers of customers increased to 1,797 which is an increase of 
33 new contracts since the beginning of the financial year. The 
service is currently forecasting to meet the £25k additional income 
target and continues to seek new opportunities to grow and 
develop the service. 

Green

5.8 Carry out a review of commercial and 
community use of car parks in relation 
festivals, events that are hosted for the 
purposes of generating income and supporting 
the community.  

01/07/2017 Investment 
income into area

Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

This activity is planned for commencement in Quarter 2.

Green

This activity is now planned to commence in Quarter 3.

Green

5.9 Conduct pilot and commence rollout of new 
domestic recycling model to improve 
recycling rates and create efficiencies 

Pilot by 
31/05/2017
Roll out 
starts Jul 
2017

£25k saving 
2017/18 

Charles 
Holmes

Locality & 
Environmental 
Quality

The final collection of the recycling trial took place at end of May. 
The closing date for participation via the survey monkey is now 
closed. Data and information from both the trial and other sources 
will be presented in a report for review by senior officers in Quarter 
2.

Green

Recycling trials are now complete. Assessment being undertaken 
in relation to the existing and new contracting arrangements 
proposed for implementation in March 2019. Green

5.10 Deliver the ICT strategy moving systems from 
being located on-site to cloud based with a 
reduction in support costs

31/03/2019 Overall reduction 
in costs £50k

Paul Wood Transformation Office 365, telephony, Contact centre, myAllerdale and our ICT 
service desk are all now firmly embedded cloud based services. 
Currently work is taking place to move the organisations GIS 
system to a cloud platform, our new website will be cloud based as 
will the new planning, environmental health system all of which are 
current projects. A new structure is in place in the ICT team 
designed to support software as a service rather than the more 
traditional support of equipment based onsite.

Green

Works are progressing to cloud enable a number of systems 
including Crematoriums, Car Parking, and Card Payments as 
Cloud Based Systems.  A cloud based system has been procured 
to support Planning, Building Control, Environmental Health and 
Licensing.  Similarly progress is being made migrating the Council 
web site to a cloud delivered service.  ICT are progressing with 
implementation of automative services that will enable any where, 
any device working.  Security improvements continue with the 
implementation of cloud based security solutions that will protect 
devices and data no matter where they are located

Green

P
age 36



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact Head of 

Service
Portfolio

2017/18
Q1 update

Q1 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q2 update

Q2 RAG 
status

5.11 Develop and deliver an Information Strategy 
to achieve more effective information 
management across the organisation to 
support robust business decisions 

Develop by 
30/09/2017 
Delivery 
2017/19

Paul Wood Transformation This forms part of the General Data Protection Regulation Project 
underway to prepare the Council for the introduction of GDPR in 
May 2018.  A Project Plan has been developed and a Project Team 
has been set up to undertake the work.  The Information Strategy 
has been scheduled to be completed by April 2018 as part of that 
plan and will not now be complete by end September 2017.

Amber

The Information Strategy has been scheduled to be completed by 
April 2018 as part of the project plan for the General Data 
Protection Regulation Project.  The Council's suite of information 
security policies have been updated in line with GDPR.  

Amber

5.12 Implement the Asset Management Plan in 
order to maximise income for the Council 

31/03/2019 Longer term 
generation of 
additional income

Nik Hardy / 
Catherine 
Nicholson

Economic Growth An Asset Management Group has been set up to implement the 
Asset Management Plan and is now meeting regularly to assess 
the Council's assets with a view to maximising income and 
identifying assets for sale.

Green

The Council has progressed the ERDF scheme for Reedlands 
road and is currently awaiting the final decision from DCLG. This 
scheme will generate an income for the Council. Further work has 
been undertaken to identify surplus properties.

Green

5.13 Complete a review of our Financial Strategy 
to include:

30/11/2017 Catherine 
Nicholson

Corporate 
Resources

A comprehensive review and refresh of the Authority's Financial 
Strategy will be completed during preparation of the 2017/18 
revised budget and 2018/19 budget cycle, commencing Q2 of 
2017/18.

Refresh of the Authority's Financial Strategy completed during 
preparation of the 2017/18 revised budget. Further review and 
updating will be completed as part of the 2018/19 budget cycle, 
commencing November 2017.

5.13a an assessment of the impact of the changes to 
the New Homes Bonus

Catherine 
Nicholson

Corporate 
Resources

The Authority's NHB allocation for 2017/18 was confirmed 
alongside the final local government finance settlement in February 
2017. This also fixed the legacy payments due in future years. 
Following the changes introduced in 2017/18 no further policy 
announcements have been made by Central Government in 
respect of NHB funding The Authority maintains a watching brief 
over future policy announcements including potential changes 
impacting on the baseline for housing growth and the withholding 
NHB from authorities where Central Government considers that 
planning is not effective in terms of decisions on planning 
applications and delivering new homes. Future level NHB funding 
will be considered during the course of  preparing the 2017/18 
revised budget and 2018/19 budget and associated refresh of the 
Authority medium term financial  plan.

Green

The Authority maintains a watching brief over future policy 
announcements. This includes monitoring potential changes 
impacting on the baseline for housing growth and the withholding 
NHB from authorities where Central Government considers that 
planning is not effective in terms of decisions on planning 
applications and delivering new homes. Future levels of  NHB 
funding reviewed during preparation of the 2017/18 revised budget 
and refresh of the Authority's medium term financial  plan.  Future 
level NHB funding will be considered during the course of 
preparing the 2018/19 budget and associated refresh of the 
Council’s medium term financial plan.

Green

5.13b an assessment of the likely impact of the move 
towards 100% rates retention

Catherine 
Nicholson

Corporate 
Resources

See comments above (ref 1.7)
Amber

See comments above (ref 1.7)
Amber

5.13c working with procurement to ensure VFM of 
facility and utility expenditure through 
framework agreements

Catherine 
Nicholson

Corporate 
Resources

Continue to monitor framework price agreements in respect of utility 
bills. Carry out tendering exercise in respect of facility contracts as 
they become due for renewal

Green

Continue to monitor framework price agreements in respect of 
utility bills. Carry out tendering exercise in respect of facility 
contracts as they become due for renewal

Green

5.13d supporting delivery of the priorities within the 
asset management plan

Catherine 
Nicholson

Corporate 
Resources

Attendance of the Asset Management Group and supporting the 
activities identified in the Groups Terms of reference through 
implementation of our annual capital and revenue programme Green

Attendance of the Asset Management Group and supporting the 
activities identified in the Groups Terms of reference through 
implementation of our annual capital and revenue programme Green

5.14 Develop business partnering role and 
training of staff – business cases and 
alternative service delivery models

31/12/2017 Catherine 
Nicholson

Corporate 
Resources

The finance staff structure has been designed with a clear 
emphasis on developing this approach, with the relevant posts now 
been filled. 
Finance staff training needs are being regularly reviewed and where 
necessary development plans put in place to ensure we have 
relevant and up to date knowledge to deliver an effective service. 
Targets are being set to focus on a business partnering approach 
to service delivery, including the inclusion of finance within service 
planning and team meetings to ensure staff are able to provide 
informed advice to these services.
Finance are providing training and holding briefing session for staff 
and members. These sessions have received excellent feedback, 
with the number of people being trained and attending briefings 
increasing.

Green

Developing and maintaining the business partnering approach 
remains the focus of the finance department, with targets being set 
and monitoring through regular What Great Looks Like reviews 
that reflect this approach. 
Finance are actively engaging with services to identify areas for 
improvement and taking every available opportunity to obtain and 
act on feedback.

Green

P
age 37



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/m
easure

Expected 
financial impact Head of 

Service
Portfolio

2017/18
Q1 update

Q1 RAG 
status

2017/18
Q2 update

Q2 RAG 
status

5.15 Implement a Coaching and leadership 
programme focussed on commercial skills to 
encourage entrepreneurial thinking and activity 
to grow the business and make us more 
efficient 

31/07/2017 Sue 
Stanhope

Governance and 
People Resources

Work progressing to identify a suitable programme.

Green

Work continues to identify an appropriate programme suitable for 
our requirements.

Green

5.16 Review Occupational Health provision to 
ensure that staff are supported 

31/05/2017 Sue 
Stanhope

Governance and 
People Resources

People Resources have procured the services of a new 
Occupational Health provider to provide effective health support to 
all our employees and appropriate advice to our managers.  Blue Blue

5.17 Deliver effective succession and workforce 
planning to ensure that we are planning for the 
future and improving business capacity, 
efficiency and productivity

30/06/2017 Sue 
Stanhope

Governance and 
People Resources

HR Advisor has prepared a work force plan. This document is in 
draft and due to be shared with SMT.

Amber

Draft workforce plan is on hold until the newly appointed HR 
Manager is in post and has reviewed the document. 

Amber

5.18 Deliver a member development programme 
to include development for members in terms of 
their community leadership role to support the 
Council in achieving its ambitions

30/04/2018 Brendan 
Carlin

Governance and 
People Resources

The team continues to support elected members with development 
and training. Work is underway to assist members with creating 
personal development plans and to commence a programme of 
training events for all members starting in September.

Green

The team met with North West Employers to begin the process of 
reviewing elected Members' personal development plans. PDPs 
have been sent to all councillors.
The Member Development Working Group met on 8 September 
2017 and raised issues which will be considered by SMT.
Six councillors are attending the LGA Leadership Academy 
programme over the upcoming months. Councillors have received 
training on confident public speaking, licensing and training on 
PREVENT and CONTEST will take place in due course. An e-
learning suite has been procured with the intention that officers 
and councillors will benefit from interactive and readily available 
training across a range of subject areas and topics.

Green

5.19 Undertake activity to improve how we 
support and promote the health and 
wellbeing of our staff including:

30/09/2017 Reduction in 
sickness levels

Graeme 
Wilson

Housing, Health 
and Wellbeing

Employee Health and Wellbeing Day held. Q3 will focus on next 
employee newsletter and outcome of survey. Roll out of dementia 
friend training to employees and elected members.

Producing bespoke guidance on the 
management of work related stress
Gaining the Better Health at Work Award to 
demonstrate our commitment to promoting the 
health and wellbeing of our staff

Portfolio of evidence being compiled for intended submission for 
bronze award in Q2.

Portfolio of evidence and assessment for bronze award completed. 
Verbal confirmation of award achieved. Q3, Q4 and Q1 focus on 
working towards silver award.

Definitions

BRAG Progress against plan

Blue Complete

Red There are significant  concerns over achieving outputs / there is serious slippage in the timetable / there are major issues to rectify

Amber There are concerns over achieving deadlines or outputs  / there are issues to rectify, but plans are in place to get the project back on track

Green Everything is on target / satisfactory progress is being made / no action required

Employee Health and Wellbeing Survey carried out. First electronic 
employee health and wellbeing newsletter published. 21 employees 
trained as dementia friends. Preparation for employee health and 
wellbeing day in Q2.

Green Green

P
age 38



Appendix B - Business Plan Q2 2017/18 - key performance indicators 

PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency
Good 

is?
2016/17

Q4

2016/17
Annual 
value

2017/18
Q1 target

2017/18
Q1 value

RAG 
Q1

DOT 
Q1

2017/18
Q2 target

2017/18
Q2 value

RAG 
Q2

DOT 
Q2

2017/18
Annual 
target

Q2 commentary

KEG01a No. of jobs created through effective management 
of external funding

Nik Hardy Quarterly High n/a 8 n/a 11 n/a p n/a 0 n/a q 50
Still working with a number of potential applicants to expand their business 
operations, whilst awaiting SIIF funding from Sellafield.

KEG01b No. of jobs safeguarded through effective 
management of external funding

Nik Hardy Quarterly High n/a n/a n/a 45 n/a p n/a 0 n/a q n/a
Still working with a number of potential applicants to expand their business 
operations, whilst awaiting SIIF funding from Sellafield.

KEG02 No. of businesses engaged Nik Hardy Quarterly High n/a n/a 13 21 G p 13 21 G tu 50
Next Large Employers forum arranged for 29 November, SME being 
rescheduled into December.

KDS01 % of major planning applications determined 
within statutory period

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Monthly High 100% 100% 95% 100% G tu 95% 100% G tu 95% KPI compliant, on target

KDS02
% of minor and other planning applications 
determined within statutory period 

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Monthly High 98% 93% 95% 94% A q 95% 96% G p 95%
Remains marginally below target arising from very small number of out of 
time applications and these have had an effect on the overall percentages.

KDS03 No. of housing units granted planning permission
Kevin 
Kerrigan

Quarterly High 41 493 103 88 R p 103 391 G p 413
Outline approval for up to 290 units for the Ashfield Road application is 
included in this figure.

KDS04 No. of new housing completions
Kevin 
Kerrigan

Quarterly High 97 250 86 27 R q 86 123 G p 344
Work has been carried out by the Planning Policy Team using Council Tax 
information to update completion records.

KDS08
Full Plans determined within 5 weeks (Building 
Control)

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Monthly High 59% 65% 85% 87% G p 85% 94% G p 85%
The performance level has now increased above the target level due to an 
alteration in the processes

KFS02 % of invoices from local Cumbrian businesses paid 
within 14 days

Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly High n/a n/a 98.0% 78.8% R p 98.0% 84.7% R p 98.0%
Improvement again from Q1 - The underlying reason why target is not 
reached remains Purchase Orders not being receipted when goods/services 
delivered, work is on-going to improve on this area

KGOV01 % of Local Land Charges Searches carried out 
within 10 working days

Brendan 
Carlin

Monthly High 96.85% 95.00% 97.60% G p 95.00% 98.65% G p 95.00% On target

KCTC01a
Time taken to process Housing Benefit new claims 
(no. of days)

Paul 
Wood

Monthly Low 24 20 20 20 G p 20 12 G p 20 On target

KCTC01b
Time taken to process Council Tax new claims (no. 
of days)

Paul 
Wood

Monthly Low 24 20 20 27 R q 20 20 G p 20 On target

KCTC02
Time taken to process Housing Benefit/Council Tax 
change of circumstances (no. of days)

Paul 
Wood

Monthly Low 6 9 8 9 A q 8 8 G p 8 On target

KHH01 No. of affordable homes facilitated by the Council
Graeme 
Wilson

Quarterly High 38 112 25 32 G q 25 4 R q 100

Affordable homes provision delivered in Harrington Workington.   The 
number of affordable homes delivered are determined by the developer 
output as opposed to being a performance related target as such.  The 
Council has limited control of the delivery rates.

KHH02 % of affordable homes allocated to those with a 
local connection and in line with S106 obligations

Graeme 
Wilson

Quarterly High 0% 0% 100% 100% G p 100% 100% G tu 100%

1. Social Housing (Rentals)  There have been no lettings of rental properties 
in areas where s106 apply to this PI during Q2. Discounted Sales - We have 
received 14 applications for discounted sales certification requests.  2 are 
incomplete due to insufficient evidence and 1 was not eligible as they did 
not meet the affordability criteria.  

Strengthening our economy

Tackling inequality

P
age 39



PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency
Good 

is?
2016/17

Q4

2016/17
Annual 
value

2017/18
Q1 target

2017/18
Q1 value

RAG 
Q1

DOT 
Q1

2017/18
Q2 target

2017/18
Q2 value

RAG 
Q2

DOT 
Q2

2017/18
Annual 
target

Q2 commentary

KHH03
Occupancy rate of temporary accommodation 
units

Graeme 
Wilson

Monthly High 84% 57% 80% 85% G p 80% 81% G q 80% On target

KHH04 % of homeless decisions made within guideline 33 
days

Graeme 
Wilson

Monthly High 95% 97% 100% 100% G p 100% 100% G tu 100% On target

KHH05
% of Safe and Warm Grants approved within 10 
weeks of initial enquiry

Graeme 
Wilson

Monthly High N/A N/A 100% N/A G tu 100% 100% G q 100%
2 Safe and Warm Grants were approved in July.  All other Safe and Warm 
enquiries are being progressed and are likely to be approved in Q3

KFS03 % of public conveniences cleaned within the 
Service Level Agreement

Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly High 100% 99.40% 100% 99% A q 100% 99% A tu 100%
Marginally off target. One toilet block not cleaned on one day due to no 
staff cover.

KHH06 No. of Empty Homes Grants processed
Graeme 
Wilson

Monthly High n/a n/a 0 0 G tu 2 1 R p 10
1 empty property grant is complete and now occupied. There are 4 more 
properties where works have been completed however the final grant 
payment and closure of the grant occurs when the properties are occupied.

KCS03a Leisure centre usage - Keswick
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High n/a 84592 21054 20769 A p 24396 24105 A p 85438

Q2 is slightly off target by around 500 visits. Swim lessons and gym 
memberships are at their highest levels, however, the pool is 
predominantly a tourist facility and usage at the beginning and end of the 
School holidays was slightly below target. 

KCS03b Leisure centre usage - Cockermouth
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High n/a 163409 41565 43282 G p 41417 41827 G q 166677 Q2 target achieved.

KCS03c Leisure centre usage - Workington
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High n/a 228988 67979 74332 G p 68194 74731 G p 274785
Q2 target achieved. The new centre continues to thrive. The centre is now 1 
year old, over quarter 3 and 4 the expectation is that usage starts to level 
off.

KCS03d The Wave usage
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High n/a 21321 6630 10224 G p 8995 10180 G q 23453 Q2 target achieved.

KCS04a
Workington Leisure Centre usage by target groups 
(low income) 

Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High n/a 13565 3438 4549 G p 3482 5096 G p 13836 Q2 target achieved.

KCS04b
Workington Leisure Centre usage by target groups 
(60+) 

Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High n/a 18264 4656 6426 G p 4656 6748 G p 18629 Q2 target achieved.

KCS04c
Workington Leisure Centre usage by target groups 
(juniors) 

Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High n/a 46478 11727 12832 G p 12079 15057 G p 47407
Q2 target achieved. Gymnastics and swimming courses and junior 
membership are at their highest levels.

KHH07 % of Disabled Facilities Grants approved within 10 
weeks from receipt of referral 

Graeme 
Wilson

Monthly High n/a n/a 100% 80% R q 100% 82% R p 100%

Out of the 38 grants approved in Q2, 7 were approved outside of the 10 
week referral to approval target time. 
(Jul - 9 out of 11 cases within 10 weeks; Aug - 5 out of 7 cases within 10 
weeks; Sept 17 out of 20 cases within 10 weeks)

KHH08 % of Discretionary Disability Grants approved 
within 10 weeks of first inspection date

Graeme 
Wilson

Monthly High n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 100% 100% G tu 100%
5 out of 5 Discretionary Disability Grants were approved within 10 weeks of 
first inspection date.

KHH09 % of programmed private water supplies sampled
Graeme 
Wilson

Monthly High n/a n/a 7% 7% G p 45% 23% R p 100%

No of samples taken are reduced due to staffing issues, a new plan has 
been produced from now until April 2018. External resource is now in place 
to assist with the delivery of the sampling programme to ensure that our 
targets are met.

Enhancing our towns

Improving health and wellbeing

P
age 40



PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency
Good 

is?
2016/17

Q4

2016/17
Annual 
value

2017/18
Q1 target

2017/18
Q1 value

RAG 
Q1

DOT 
Q1

2017/18
Q2 target

2017/18
Q2 value

RAG 
Q2

DOT 
Q2

2017/18
Annual 
target

Q2 commentary

KHH10
% of food safety inspections carried out (Category 
A-B)

Graeme 
Wilson

Monthly High n/a 100% 100% 100% G p 100% 95% A q 100%
Reduced staff levels and reactive work has led to a small number of A/B 
rated inspections being carried out later than target

Creating a sustainable business

KCTC03 No. of new customer registrations myAllerdale 
(Channel shift) (registrations per period)

Paul 
Wood

Monthly High 959 n/a 300 782 G q 300 1024 G p 1200 Significantly above target reflecting very good uptake of myAllerdale.

KCTC04
Average speed of answer (A.S.A) on calls to 
03031231702 (seconds)

Paul 
Wood

Monthly Low 83 109 45 84 R q 45 65 R p 45 Performance has improved since Q1 and we are close to achieving target. 

KCTC05 Abandoned calls rate (%)
Paul 
Wood

Monthly Low 10% 13% 7% 10% R tu 7% 8% R p 7% Performance has improved since Q1 and are very close to achieving target. 

KCTC06 Customer service satisfaction score
Paul 
Wood

Quarterly High n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 80% 88% G p 80% Survey started 01/09/17.  Results above target.

KCTC07 Average no. of website unique page views per day
Paul 
Wood

Monthly High 3325 n/a 3500 3447 A p 3500 3129 R q 3500
There have been some below-target fluctuations with the data in recent 
months, which is often reflected in these months.

KCTC08 Average no. of Facebook likes per day 
Paul 
Wood

Monthly High 1885 n/a 1800 2007 G p 1800 2088 G p 1800
Facebook likes continue to rise in this period and people continue to be 
engaged with the council's social media content.

KCTC09 Average no. of Twitter followers per day
Paul 
Wood

Monthly High 5320 n/a 5500 5697 G p 5500 5889 G p 5500 The number of Twitter users has continued with its upward trend.

KCTC10a Average no. of ICT Support calls logged per day
Paul 
Wood

Monthly Low n/a n/a 27 36 R 27 26 G p 27
GIS Calls are now reflected within the Service Desk Figures.  With the 
introduction of some automative services there has been effectively an 
overall reduction in number of call requests

KCTC10b
Average no. of ICT Support calls outstanding per 
day

Paul 
Wood

Monthly Low n/a n/a 50 62 R 50 48 G p 50
Some day to day fluctuations due to holidays and illness however 
maintaining overall averages

KCTC11 % of ICT support calls resolved within SLA 
Paul 
Wood

Monthly High 88 95 85% 96% G q 85% 95% G tu 85%
Change Manager to start soon and will look to not only maintain SLA calls 
but remove some very aged calls.

KCTC12
No. of working hours lost per month due to major 
systems downtime

Paul 
Wood

Monthly Low n/a n/a 0 0.5 A 0 1.2 A q 0
Intermittent failure caused period of downtime due to failed fibre in 
building, when replaced service was resumed

KCTC13 NNDR collection rate
Paul 
Wood

Monthly High 98.23% 98.23% 30.66% 30.90% G p 58.38% 57.51% A p 98.20%
Collection rate higher than same point last year. Still expected to achieve 
annual target.  DOT - see note*

KCTC14 Council Tax collection rate
Paul 
Wood

Monthly High 97.55% 97.55% 29.78% 29.80% G p 57.82% 57.62% A tu 97.80%
The debit raised has increased in Q2 thereby pushing the collection rate 
slightly under target. This happens same time each year and therefore we 
still expect to achieve the annual target.  DOT - see note*

KFS01 % invoices paid in 30 days
Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly High 87.9% 92.4% 98.0% 89.6% A p 98.0% 95.9% A p 98.0%
Improvement again from Q1 - The underlying reason why target is not 
reached remains Purchase Orders not being receipted when goods/services 
delivered, work is on-going to improve on this area

KFS06a
% of invoiced debt collected within 30 days of 
invoicing

Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly High n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
A report to extract the relevant data has now been developed in 
conjunction with the  Councils financial software supplier . This will enable 
this indicator to be reported from Q2.

P
age 41



PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency
Good 

is?
2016/17

Q4

2016/17
Annual 
value

2017/18
Q1 target

2017/18
Q1 value

RAG 
Q1

DOT 
Q1

2017/18
Q2 target

2017/18
Q2 value

RAG 
Q2

DOT 
Q2

2017/18
Annual 
target

Q2 commentary

KFS06b % of debt outstanding for over 90 days
Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly Low 60.99% 45.44% n/a 34% n/a p n/a 29% n/a q n/a

Although the percentage has increased since Q1 for debts over 90 days 
although there is no significant change in the value of those debts.
The reason for the increased percentage is due to a reduction in the overall 
aged debt, which has decreased by 46% since Q1 from £1,231,375 to 
£566,384.

KEG04 Occupancy rates of Council’s property portfolio Nik Hardy Monthly High 92.5% 92.5% 90.0% 90.3% G q 90.0% 92.5% G p 90.0% Current occupancy rates on target.

KCS01 
(NI192)

% of household waste sent for recycling
Charles 
Holmes

Quarterly High 29.1% 37.9% 41.8% 41.3% A tu 47.2% 46.1% A q 41.0%
Estimated figure.
DOT - see note*

KCS02 
(NI191)

Kg of household waste sent to landfill
Charles 
Holmes

Quarterly Low 130.80 529.70 132.00 138.50 A q 118.00 112.00 G p 520.00
Estimated figure.
DOT - see note*

KPR01
Average no. of working days lost to sickness 
absence per employee per annum

Sue 
Stanhope

Monthly Low 8.80 7.00 9.15 R q 7.00 9.70 R q 7.00

The annual cumulative figure has increased which has been impacted by 
long term sickness. However, long term sickness has now significantly 
reduced. Overall the total number of days lost to sickness in September was 
20% lower than August.

KPR02 Levels of staff engagement and productivity
Sue 
Stanhope

Annually High n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Taken from annual staff survey. Baseline to be established 2017

Definitions

RAG
R Significantly worse than target (usually >10% from target) – urgent action required to improve performance
A Within agreed tolerance of target (usually up to 10% from target) - some action may be required to improve performance
G On, or better than, target

DOT Direction of travel arrows indicate whether performance since the last comparable period has become:
p Better
tu Stayed the same
q Worse

'Comparable period' - this is usually the previous month or quarter.  

* For a few indicators we compare back to the previous year's comparable quarters (these are KCTC13, KCTC14, KCS01, KCS02)

P
age 42



Appendix C - Corporate risk and issues log at 10/01/18 (risk score > 9)

ID R
is

k 
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

Im
p

ac
t 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

Im
p

ac
t

L
ik

el
ih

o
o

d

R
is

k 
S

co
re

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty

M
ea

su
re

s 
an

d
 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

M
ea

su
re

s 
an

d
 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 A
ss

ig
n

m
en

t

M
it

ig
at

in
g

 A
ct

io
n

s 
p

la
n

n
ed

P
o

st
 M

it
ig

at
io

n
 Im

p
ac

t
P

o
st

 M
it

ig
at

io
n

 
L

ik
el

ih
o

o
d

P
o

st
 M

it
ig

at
io

n
 R

is
k 

S
co

re

M
it

ig
at

io
n

 D
at

e

35 Significant 
unbudgeted 
expenditure arising 
from severe weather 
conditions.

Further deterioration of sea 
defences and impact on low lying 
coastal properties and land.
Landslips occuring following 
severe weather
Cost of business disruption e.g. 
NNDR collection
Increase cost of business as usual 
services and customers as 
resource is used to support 

4 4 16 Nicholson, 
Catherine

Extent of damage identified and external funding opportunities being explored 
Report produced identifying issues and options and circulated to Director
Following Storm Desmond and flooding in December 2015 the Bellwin scheme has been activated for Cumbria. This 
scheme will provide additional financial support associated with response works undertaken between the start of the 
incident and up to 1 month after the end of the official response stage. 
A finance sub-group with members from all Cumbrian Authorities has been set up in response to recent storms and 
flooding, this allows the sharing of knowledge and best practice. This group will also be responsible for identifying 
additional funding for the recovery phase (works required to land/property, loss of income from taxation and business 
interruption).
Where works are required to be undertaken, these are recorded and costs estimated to ensure that financing can be 
identified, either from external sources identified by the finance sub-group or from Allerdale BC's budget and internal 
resources. 

Bellwin now submitted and awaiting settlment.  no queries to date.
Major incident budget created for 16/17

Nicholson, 
Catherine

Funding opportunities to support the repair/replacement of damaged sea 
defences still being explored. Awaiting confirmation from Environment Agency.  
STILL OUTSTANDING

Action has been taken to address highest risk area (Well Lane, Maryport). 
Topographic survey and initial appraisal have been undertaken. Inspection has 
revealed further structural inspections will be required and additional works will 
be required additional to the original anticipated costs. Consultants are acting 
in connection with the identified additional works.

Provision for this additional cost is being made in 2016/17 budget.
UPDATE MAY 17:  Well Lane now complete.  No further work required at this 
stage.  Possible retentions for 6-12 month period.

Finance Sub-group set up (following Storm Desmond) to idenitfy additional 
funding for recovery phase - NOW DISBANDED

2 2 4 01/09/2017

4 Failure to continue 
providing value for 
money for expenditure

Inability to fulfil statutory 
obligations. Cease discretionary 
services. Cannot succeed as a 
council.  Unable to achieve plans, 
loss of key staff and or services, 
further use of reserves. Waste due 
to inefficient processes.

4 3 12 Frost, Ian 5 Year sustainability plan agreed by Executive.  Reserves above minimum level. Star Chamber approach adopted to 
improve accountability and responsibility for budget management. Tailor made financial workshops for budget holders 
quarterly.  Budget timetable and reporting managed effectively. Forecasting out puts examined and challenged at SMT 
regularly.  Increasing demand for monthly performance indicator information at SMT monthly to drive efficiency and 
effectiveness. Sector advisors – treasury guidance. Reducing spend programme – monitored.
The Commercial and Commissioning Boards should drive cost and time performance information relating to value for 
money and productivity. This should include detailed business cases and options appraisals to support informed 
decision making.                                                        
Council plan projects and new areas of business activity should be subject to a structured options appraisal using the 
programme office methodology to encourage innovation and the consideration of alternative business and delivery 
models. Projects should include clear measurable, agreed outputs to demonstrate the value added by the expenditure.     
Risk information in the Corporate Risks and Issues Log should be refreshed on an ongoing basis as changes occur to 
ensure it reflects current risk management activities. A risk evaluation of the high risks (red) should be completed by 
the Senior Management Team monthly. 
Minimum reserve position and self sufficiency targets monitored and reviewed by S151 Officer on risk basis

Frost, Ian SMT are developing an Organisational Development Plan to support the drive 
for efficiency and growth. Value for Money will be a key driver for these plans. 
1. Transformation Board manages the budget. 2. In service review. 3. 
Improvement Workshops - SMT to pilot. 4. Elaine to design - 
commisioning/procurement training.

3 3 9 01/09/2017

14 Business continuity 
plans do not meet 
business needs

The Council does not comply with 
its duties as a Category 1 
Responder under CCA. Priority 
services are not maintained,. 
Resulting in bad publicity and loss 
of confidence in management,  
delayed income collection, 
increased unbudgeted expenditure 
costs.

4 3 12 Nicholson, 
Catherine

16/02/2017 – Cloud based Business continuity software has been implemented, accessible from any internet capable 
device, relevant staff have received training on its use. Departmental plans combined into central Business Continuity 
plan containing sections for dealing with Initial Incident actions, Communications, Recovery and Restoration phases, 
together with managing impact on the Council. Solway House agreed as alternative location for DDR set up site, 
control centre and priority services. ICT infrastructure and data links in place to allow restoration of required servers 
and access to data backups located at Carlisle. Telephony system transferred to BT OnePhone fully mobile based 
system removing requirement for server access via Allerdale House. Contact Centre transferred to a ‘cloud’ based 
solution allowing access via any internet capable device, regardless of location. Property Services have provided a plan 
identifying space within building for incident response team and priority services.  Business Interruption insurance in 
place and Insurance cover in respect of council assets, reinstatement of data, additional increased cost of working.
Business interruption insurance relating to specified supplier investigated and amendments to cover made.
Business recovery plan template has been updated to capture additional information about resource requirements for 
priority services, details of staff to be relocated to Solway House and other potential locations and has been circulated 
to Heads of Service

Nicholson, 
Catherine

1.  Apply likely costings for budget   
2.  Head of Service table top exercise held on 14/02/17 supervised by Egton 
consultant. Number of actions raised to amend and update plan. Further 
excercise to be completed     
3. Rolling program of full Departmental exercises      
4. Update Audit Committee 
5. Learn lessons from partner organisations

3 3 9 31/12/2017

P
age 43



ID R
is

k 
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

Im
p

ac
t 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

Im
p

ac
t

L
ik

el
ih

o
o

d

R
is

k 
S

co
re

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty

M
ea

su
re

s 
an

d
 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

M
ea

su
re

s 
an

d
 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 A
ss

ig
n

m
en

t

M
it

ig
at

in
g

 A
ct

io
n

s 
p

la
n

n
ed

P
o

st
 M

it
ig

at
io

n
 Im

p
ac

t
P

o
st

 M
it

ig
at

io
n

 
L

ik
el

ih
o

o
d

P
o

st
 M

it
ig

at
io

n
 R

is
k 

S
co

re

M
it

ig
at

io
n

 D
at

e

32 Failure to engage 
community in the 
planning process. 

Delays and costs associated with 
objections and challenges to 
planning applications and site 
allocations. Impact on delivery of 
the Council's growth ambitons for 
housing and employment land. 
Adverse impact on the Council's 
reputation. Impact on Council Tax, 
NNDR and New Homes Bonus 
received. 

4 3 12 Kerrigan, 
Kevin

Improved community consultation and engagement.
Member engagement in development of Local Plan through Planning Policy Working Group.
Training for Development Panel members - including applications review workshops. 
Appropriate level of detail in Development Panel reports.
Regular planning case mangement meetings
Wording of planning application correspondence reviewed.
Appeal decision reviews circulated to members. 
Moved to 4 week cycle for Development Panel with morning sessions focussed on member training, application review 
workshops and the introduction of pre-application engagement with developers on major schemes. 

Kerrigan, 
Kevin

Increased engagement with Town and Parish Council's to assist in explaining 
the planning system and the reasons for decisions. 
1. Community email/newsletter that people sign up to to get more information. 
2. publicise the decision making process/grounds for objectives. 3. more social 
media communication. 4. give public facing staff a route to feedback from 
conversations within the community - concepts to be developed following 
appointment to new post of Planning Implementation Manager. 

4 2 8 29/09/2017

48 Inability to deliver the 
council plan due to the 
consequences of 
Brexit 

strategic priorities are not met
improvements are not made
lives in allerdale are not improved
cannot deliver value for money
reduced growth

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik Scenario planning session completed with Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager.
Staff briefing sessons held on 12th and 15th July 2016
 and a further session held in August 2017

Frost, Ian; 
Hardy, Nik

Key Officers must remain part of discussions with stakeholders
The situation will be monitored through the creation of the Strategy, Policy and 
Performance team - regular topic specific meetings have/ are being held
Information updates from professional bodies should be shared with SMT on a 
regular basis
Identify strategy setting groups and ensure we are part of these discussions.
Involve more people in the information updates.

4 3 12 01/09/2017

51 Potential risk to the 
delivery of major 
schemes due to 
reduced levels of 
public regeneration 
funding

Inability to progress major 
regeneration schemes resulting in 
failure to safeguard or create 
employment opportunities

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik Ongoing dialogue wtih relevant funding bodies and stakeholders. Hardy, Nik 1. Continuation of dialogue with key stakeholders and funding bodies.
2. Identification of other possible means to delivery.
3. Applying for Business Rates pilot.
4. Potential private sector funding.
5. LEP growth Deal.
6. Alternative delivery model designed for private sector investment.

0 01/09/2017

52 Failure to establish 
cost effective waste 
and recycling, street 
cleansing and grounds 
maintenance services 
in Allerdale, delivering 
to the needs of the 
local community

The contracting arrangements 
currently in place providing for 
waste and recycling (including 
recycling reprocessing), street 
cleansing and grounds 
maintenance terminate on 31 
March 2019. A new business 
delivery model will need to be 
commissioned to enable these key 
services to be delivered with an 
affordability saving of £1m from 
the current cost. Failure to 
commission these services, on 
time and cost, will have a 
significant negative impact on the 
business of the Council. 

4 3 12 Holmes, 
Charles

Potential business delivery models have been scoped and assessed based on agreed criteria. The preferred model 
selected is the procurement of a performance based services contracting arrangement. This is being considered at the 
Executive on 10 May 2017.

Costs (legal, technical and financial) of procurement are being scoped for allocation of resource. 

The project management arrangements include a detailed risk register outlining the individual project risks associated 
withthe delivery of the project. 

Banks, Neil Following the selection of the business delivery model the commissioning of 
the services will takeplace through an OJEU tendered procurement procedure.

The project is structured around a detailed project plan and supported through 
the community services business delivery model project group and project 
board governance structure including a detailed risk register outlining the 
individual project risks associated with the delivery of the project. 

4 1 4 01/11/2017

53 Move to 100% 
retention of business 
rates - and the delay 
from 2019/20 to 
2020/21 - depending 
on new parliament

Impact on the medium term 
financial plan.
Potential loss of growth depending 
on re-sets
Difficulty in planning for growth 
and retaining income

3 4 12 Nicholson, 
Catherine

Whole scheme has now been delayed due to the snap general election.
Awaiting Queens Speech - new legislation

Nicholson, 
Catherine

Continued membership of Cumbria NNDR group
LG futures events for updates
Consultations and DCLG statements
Pilot potential will be reported to Executive Council in January 2018.

3 3 9 09/05/2017

54 Failure to manage and 
maintain a secure 
information systems 
network

Service outage, loss of data, 
business disruption, reduced trust 
from stakeholders, cyber crime, 
information lost or stolen, 
regulatory fines, regulatory 
investigation, failure to provide 
customer service, loss of income.

4 3 12 Wood, Paul Independent penetration testing completed annually by a third party to identify and report vulnerabilities in the system. 
Cloud based systems are in place for office 365, my allerdale, telephony. Daily off site back ups. Regular back up 
reliability testing. Revised ICT policys to improve end user awareness. Public Services Network compliance gained 
March 2017. Horizon scanning and lessons learnt from events.

Hollins, 
Keith

1. Gradually move all systems to cloud based products.
2. Implementation of Cloud based strategy
3. Regular scheduled back up testing
4. Awareness and education of all end users - (ICT business partner role) by 
31/3/18

4 2 8 22/09/2018

P
age 44



ID R
is

k 
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

Im
p

ac
t 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

Im
p

ac
t

L
ik

el
ih

o
o

d

R
is

k 
S

co
re

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty

M
ea

su
re

s 
an

d
 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

M
ea

su
re

s 
an

d
 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 A
ss

ig
n

m
en

t

M
it

ig
at

in
g

 A
ct

io
n

s 
p

la
n

n
ed

P
o

st
 M

it
ig

at
io

n
 Im

p
ac

t
P

o
st

 M
it

ig
at

io
n

 
L

ik
el

ih
o

o
d

P
o

st
 M

it
ig

at
io

n
 R

is
k 

S
co

re

M
it

ig
at

io
n

 D
at

e

55 Information is not 
managed in line with 
policy, procedure and 
regulatory 
requirements.  Failure 
to deliver the 
requirements of the 
Data Protection 
Regulations.

1. Breach of GDPR & financial 
implications. 2. Reputation, trust & 
confidence. 3. Fines. 4. 
Commercial sensitive information. 
5. Damage to relationship with 
partners we work with possibly 
won't work with us again. 6. 
Potential loss of staff through 
dismissal. 7. ICO investigation. 8. 
Loss/misuse of personal data. 9. 
Loss of business time. 10. Could 
be put into special measures. 11. 
Substantial fine 12. Potential 
fraud.

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik 1. GDPR framework and internal policies. 2. Process & procedures. 3. Review what we have and why we hold it. 4. 
Audit process. 5. Retention policy. 6. ICT policies. 7. Data sharing protocol. 8. Project group established.

Hardy, Nik Project Running:
1. Education/training. 2. Awareness. 3. Reviews. 4. Monitoring. 5. E-Learning. 
6. Team meetings. 7. Regular updates. 8. Procedures in place to ensure 
policies adhered to. 9. Review what we hold. 10. Learn from others. 11. 
Reminders for staff about managing data. 12. Managers consistency. 13. 
Highlighting consequences (to staff and also those whose data is stolen etc). 
14. Campaign. 15. Repetative testing. 16. Acknowledgement of understanding.

4 2 8 31/05/2018

13 Business rates 
collected fall below 
baseline funding

Less cash income and more 
reliance on reserves. Unable to 
balance budget. Further service 
cuts.

3 3 9 Nicholson, 
Catherine

In house Revs and Bens team monitor collection rates and report back to  Head of Finance to provide early warning. 
Existing award of business rate reliefs policy in place but based on system before localisation of NNDR. Application to 
pool business rates has been accepted again for 2016/17.  Cumbria wide group established with Cumbria County 
Council taking the lead role on the pool with specialist advice.
Regular meetings are held between all members of the pool to discuss the business rates income projections and to 
highlight any significant issues that are relevant to the pool and/or individual authorities. 
Monitoring currently in place is reviewed and changes/enhancements are discussed between relevant parties and 
where necessary actioned. 
The Allerdale sub-group has been set up and has now had a number of meetings to discuss potential growth, decline 
and any other relevant topics, members include revenues, planning, finance, economic growth and membership is 
reviewed to make sure it remains fit for purpose. 

Nicholson, 
Catherine

 1.  Working with Revs and Bens Shared Service to develop more enhanced 
monitoring  eg top 20 rates payers, those in appeal etc.   
 2.  Update of discretionary rate reflief planned
3. Set up Buiness Rates Working Group

3 2 6 01/09/2017

18 Failure to align 
adequate people 
resources to council 
strategic priorities. 

Strategic Priorities and associated 
outcomes are not delivered
Transformation programme is not 
delivered.
Services fail to grow or be as 
efficient as required.

3 3 9 Seekings, 
Andrew

Current performance management framework ensures that key issues and challenges facing the Council drives Council 
Plan and service plan priorities.  
Project approach is taken to delivering Council Plan and regular monitoring of budgets and performance is in place.
Deployment of appropraite people resources is considered as part of programme/project set up
New performance/behaviours framework in place 

Seekings, 
Andrew

 •Process designed to identify internal capability and expertise and then the 
information used to allocate resource
 •Resource allocation considered as part of project management 
 •Review performance targets to make sure that they relevant, reflect our 

direction of travel and measure and evaluate success in achieving our vision. 
 •Performance against strategic priorities monitored on a regular basis at SMT.

3 2 6 30/09/2017

22 Increased number of 
families in poverty

Quality of life reduced, decreased 
customer satisfaction, reduced life 
expectancy. 

3 3 9 Seekings, 
Andrew

1. Development and delivery of the Reducing Poverty Strategy 

2. Local poverty statistics monitored annually through the Key issues paper  

Seekings, 
Andrew

 1.Review and update the Tackling Inequality Strategy and Action Plan.  
Overview and Scrutiny undertaking pre-Scrutiny work on draft strategy and 
action plan through task and finish group - due to report to OSC Committee 
Dec 2017.  Refreshed Strategy agreed by March 2018.

 2.Develop a framework to ensure that tackling inequality is considered across 
the organisation in business planning and decision making by March 2018
3. Review baseline TIS by March 2018.

3 3 9 01/02/2018

29 Failure to manage 
commissioning 
lifecycle with key 
partners.

Priorities are not met, partnerships 
fail, legal disputes occur, 
opportunities missed.

3 3 9 Seekings, 
Andrew

Commissioning Manager now in place
Strategic Review Plan - agreed to start with grounds maintenance.  Strategic and Service review plan agreed by 
Commissioning Board to be implemented.

Seekings, 
Andrew

1. Contract Monitoring in Financial Regulations review. 2. Electronic diary 
system for renewal/break clauses etc. 3. Monitor existing KPI's. 4. Monthly 
meetings. 5. New grounds maintenance contract implemented. 6. 
Commissioning and Procurement Board oversees progress & compliance. 7. 
MTFP (medium term financial plan) identifies potential financial impact and self 
sufficiency targets.

2 2 4 30/11/2016

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 46



1

Appendix D – Business Plan 2017/18 - Outcome measures

The outcome measures set out in the Business Plan are mainly wider contextual measures, such as 
health or employment figures published by other organisations.  Our work will have an influence on 
these, but they are not directly related to our service provision and so they are not attributed with a 
RAG rating. 

Monitoring these outcome measures will give us an indication as to whether our efforts are 
contributing to the improvement in outcomes for our communities that we are aiming to achieve under 
the priority themes that we have set out in the Council Plan.

Strengthening our economy 
We aim to create a strong, sustainable and vibrant local economy and create jobs

Number of people out of work (aiming to decrease)

Source: ONS/DWP (Cumbria Observatory graph)

ONS data note – “Under Universal Credit a broader span of claimants are required to look for work 
than under Jobseeker's Allowance. As Universal Credit Full Service is rolled out in particular areas, 
the number of people recorded as being on the Claimant Count is therefore likely to rise.” 

The graph shows claimant rates for JSA and out of work UC claimants and demonstrates this effect - 
rates in Allerdale and Copeland appear to have been rising since October 2016 whilst other areas of 
Cumbria have remained at a more constant level.  The introduction of Universal Credit is particularly 
affecting figures for Allerdale and Copeland where full service UC has been implemented at 
Workington and Whitehaven Job Centres.  

Page 47



2

Number of young people out of work (aiming to decrease)

This age group currently 
represent approximately 
20% of all claimants in 
Allerdale.

The claimant rate for 
people aged 18-24 in 
Allerdale has been 
consistently above that for 
Cumbria over the period 
shown, although does 
show a gradually declining 
trend until 2017.  
Allerdale’s rate is also 
above the UK rate.

Source: ONS/DWP 

The effect of the introduction of Universal Credit in Allerdale cannot be seen as clearly in the rate for 
this age group, although there has been an upturn in rate since June 2017 which may be attributed in 
part to the effect of the introduction of full service Universal Credit.

Number of jobs located in Allerdale (aiming to maintain or increase) 

The graph shows the 
fluctuations in number of 
jobs in Allerdale over a ten- 
year period with a high point 
in 2012.  

The total number of jobs in 
Allerdale appears to be on 
the rise again in 2015 
following a fall over the 
2012-2014 period.

Source: NOMIS official labour market statistics

Page 48



3

Number of businesses in Allerdale (aiming to increase)

The total number of 
businesses in Allerdale has 
seen a rising trend between 
2012 and 2016.  
Figures for 2017 show a 
slight fall in numbers.  

Source: NOMIS official labour market statistics

Number of businesses with more than 50 employees (aiming to increase)

The total number of 
businesses with more 
than 50 employees has 
been static in Allerdale 
between 2012 and 2016.  

The 2017 figures show a 
slight increase with 5 
additional medium 
businesses (50-249 
employees) reported.  

Source: NOMIS official labour market statistics

Page 49



4

Tourist expenditure and employment (aiming to increase)

As the figures in the graph show, 
tourist expenditure fell off slightly in 
2012, but has been steadily 
increasing since then.   

In a similar pattern to tourist 
expenditure, numbers employed in 
tourism in Allerdale fell off in 2012, 
but have since shown a steadily 
increasing trend year on year.

    Source: STEAM 

Housing provision (aiming to increase)

The graph shows that net 
additional homes delivered 
each year since 2011/12 
have risen overall with a 
high of 385 achieved in 
2015/16.  The target in the 
Council’s Local Plan is 304 
net additional homes per 
annum.
Factors affecting this figure 
are complex, but a general 
slowdown in the local 
housing market in mid-2016 
is understood to have had a 
significant impact on that 
years’ figures.

      Source: Allerdale Borough Council  

Page 50



5

Tackling inequality 
We aim to reduce poverty and support people facing financial difficulties

Number of people out of work (aiming to decrease) 
(See Strengthening our Economy section above)

Proportion of the workforce with low or no skills (aiming to decrease)

The graph shows a 
decreasing trend in the 
percentage of the working 
age population with no 
qualifications in Allerdale, 
Cumbria and the North 
West. 
The fall in the percentage of 
those with no qualifications 
in Allerdale between 2014 
and 2016 is of a greater 
scale to that seen in the 
North West or Cumbria 
figures. 

  Source: ONS Annual Population Survey

Children living in poverty in our target wards (aiming to decrease)

Child poverty figures for 
Allerdale have followed a 
very similar pattern to 
those for Cumbria and 
England as a whole.  
Latest available figures 
suggest that child poverty 
has risen in Allerdale, 
Cumbria and nationally, 
although it should be 
pointed out that the 
measure reported here is a 
relative rather than 
absolute measure.   

Source: Department for Work and Pensions (Children in low-income families local measure)

There are 9 wards with child poverty rates above the Allerdale average. In our more deprived wards 
in Workington and Maryport levels of child poverty are considerably higher than the Allerdale 

Page 51



6

average.  Moorclose and St. Michael’s have rates above 25%, whilst Ewanrigg and Moss Bay have 
rates above 30%.  The rates for these areas have fluctuated slightly over the time period shown, but 
overall have remained fairly constant across this time period. 

Numbers of people using Foodbanks (aiming to decrease)

In Allerdale, Foodbank 
usage shows an overall 
increasing trend from 2011 
to 2016 with a peak in 
2013.  

In Allerdale the largest 
number of Foodbank 
vouchers issued in 2016 
were in the wards of St. 
Michaels, Moss Bay, 
Moorclose and St. Johns in 
Workington, Netherhall in 
Maryport and Wigton ward.  

  Source: North Lakes Foodbank

Figures suggest that the primary causal factor for Foodbank usage in Allerdale and Copeland relates 
to receipt of benefits, either in terms of delays to receiving benefits or changes to benefits accounting 
for 35% and 18% of crisis types in 2016 respectively.

People in fuel poverty (aiming to decrease)

The latest published figures show 
that fuel poverty has fallen slightly 
between 2014 and 2015.  
Allerdale has followed a similar 
pattern to Cumbria over the 
period shown. 

7 of Allerdale’s LSOAs have 
levels of fuel poverty above 15% 
(these are in the wards of 
Warnell, St John’s, Boltons, St 
Michael’s, Moss Bay, Crummock 
and Holme).  The LSOA with the 
highest reported level of fuel 
poverty is in Warnell ward at 
17.8%. 

Source: Department of Energy and Climate Change

The LSOAs in Allerdale with higher fuel poverty levels are in a mixture of more affluent and more deprived 
areas demonstrating the fact that fuel poverty is influenced by a range of factors (fuel costs, property type 
and energy efficiency, household income, energy costs). 

Page 52



7

Numbers of affordable homes delivered (aiming to increase)

Figures for the past 6 years show 
a clear drop in 2013/14, but fairly 
consistent performance in terms 
of numbers of affordable homes 
delivered in Allerdale over the 
last 3 years.

Over the 6 year period shown 
623 affordable homes have been 
delivered, 28% of these in 
Cockermouth and 27% in the 
Lake District National Park areas 
of Allerdale where affordability 
issues are significant.

Source: Allerdale Borough Council

Page 53



8

Enhancing our towns
We aim to create thriving towns that are attractive and welcoming and retain their 

distinctive characters

Satisfaction with town centres (aiming to increase)

The graph shows an 
improving trend in terms 
of overall satisfaction with 
town centres.

In the 2016 survey, 
satisfaction varied quite 
widely, from just 28% in 
Maryport (where almost 
half, 49%, were 
dissatisfied), to 65% in 
Workington, 70% in 
Keswick and 86% in 
Cockermouth.

   Source: Allerdale Borough Council Residents Survey 

Satisfaction with cleanliness of town centres (aiming to increase)

The graph shows an 
improving level of 
satisfaction with the 
cleanliness of town 
centres across the 
Residents Surveys 
conducted in 2012, 2014 
and 2016.

In the 2016 survey, 
satisfaction varied across 
the different towns from 
92% in Cockermouth and 
Keswick to 71% in 
Wigton, 67% in 
Workington, 42% in 
Maryport.

  Source: Allerdale Borough Council Residents Survey 

Page 54



9

Empty properties (aiming to decrease)

Figures in the chart are 
taken from the Council’s 
Council Taxbase return to 
Government each October. 

The chart shows a gradual 
increase (18.5% increase) in 
the numbers of dwellings 
classed as empty for over 6 
months and a smaller 
increase in those classed as 
empty for over 2 years (13% 
increase) over the period 
shown. 

Source: DCLG Council Taxbase statistics

Page 55



10

Improving health and wellbeing 
We aim to help people live healthy and active lives and reduce health inequalities

Proportion of physically active adults (aiming to increase) 

The Active People Survey has now been replaced by the Active Lives Survey which provides a 
different measure of physical activity.  Figures from the new Active Lives Survey are therefore not 
directly comparable with previous figures from the Active People Survey.  The new survey includes 
gardening under the definition of moderate physical activity.  Gardening, however, is outside of Sport 
England's remit so they report figures excluding gardening.

Measure Allerdale
2016/17

England
2016/17

Adults (16+) achieving the recommended 150 minutes moderate 
activity per week (excluding gardening)

64.7% 60.6%

Adults (16+) currently not achieving 30 minutes of moderate 
physical activity per week (excluding gardening)

22.5% 25.6%

Source: Sport England Active Lives Survey

The first figures from the new survey show that Allerdale is performing above the England average.  
In Cumbria, Allerdale’s figures rank it second out of the 6 districts behind South Lakeland. 

Healthy weight levels in children (aiming to improve)

       Prevalence of overweight (including obese) - Reception

The graph shows that the 
England average for excess 
weight in children aged 4-5 
years has remained fairly 
static over the time period 
shown.

In Allerdale, however, the 
figures show considerable 
fluctuation, but what appears 
to be a worsening trend.  
Figures have been 
significantly above the 
England average for 2013/14, 
2014/15 and 2015/16 
(represented by a blue dot). 

Source: NHS Digital, National Child Measurement Programme (Public Health England graph)

Page 56



11

          Prevalence of overweight (including obese) – Year 6

The figures for England show 
a gradual increase in excess 
weight in children aged 10-11 
years over the period shown.

Figures for Allerdale have 
fluctuated over the period 
shown with a peak in 
2012/13.  The figure for 
2014/15 puts Allerdale’s level 
just below the England 
average, although as noted 
above the England average 
has been slowly increasing 
over the period shown. 

   Source: NHS Digital, National Child Measurement Programme (Public Health England graph)

Excess weight in adults (aiming to decrease)

The graph shows the 
percentage of adults classified 
as overweight or obese.

Whilst the England average 
has remained static over the 
time period shown, Allerdale’s 
figures have risen from 68.6% 
to 71.2% (shown by the red 
dots on the graph).

   Source: Active People Survey, Sport England (Public Health England graph)

Excess weight in adults

Page 57



12

Life expectancy gap (aiming to reduce)

This graph and the one 
following show how the gap 
in life expectancy between 
residents in our most 
deprived areas compared 
with residents in our least 
deprived areas has changed 
over time.  

The trend in life expectancy 
gap for men has been down 
over the time period shown, 
although the most recent 
data shows a slight 
increase.

Source: Public Health England

Life expectancy at birth figures for men in Allerdale have risen from 78.0 years (2009-11) to 78.9 
years (2013-15), but are still below the England average of 79.5 years (2013-15).  And data for 
2011-15 by ward shows that 3 wards are significantly below the England average (Moss Bay 75.1; 
Moorclose 75.7; Ewanrigg 76.5). 

The trend in life expectancy 
gap for women however, 
has been upwards over the 
same time period.  

Life expectancy at birth 
figures for women in 
Allerdale have risen from 
81.8 years (2009-11) to 
82.3 years (2013-15), but 
are classed as 
significantly below the 
England average of 83.1 
years (2013-15).  

Source: Public Health England

Data for 2011-15 by ward shows that 5 wards are significantly below the England average (Moss Bay 
75.3; Ewanrigg 77.9; Netherhall 78.5; Moorclose 78.8; St. Johns 79.6; Silloth 80.4).

Page 58



13

Alcohol-related harm rates (aiming to decrease)

The graph shows figures for 
hospital stays for alcohol-related 
harm expressed as a figure per 
100,000 population.  The figures 
show that for England there has 
been a fairly static rate over the 
time period shown.

For Allerdale however, the trend 
is clearly markedly downward 
over the period shown.  The red 
dots signify that the Allerdale 
figure was significantly worse 
than the England average until 
2015/16 by which time it had 
reduced to 667 per 100,000 
population (against the England 
average of 647 per 100,000). 

Source: Calculated by Public Health England: Risk Factors Intelligence (RFI) team using data from NHS Digital - 
Hospital Episode Statistics (HES) and Office for National Statistics (ONS) - Mid Year Population Estimates.

Smoking rates (aiming to decrease)

Nationally, the figures taken 
from the Annual Population 
Survey show a steady declining 
trend in terms of numbers of 
current smokers from 19.3% to 
15.5% between 2012 and 
2016.  

The figures for Allerdale show 
a similar declining trend overall 
for this period from 21.7% in 
2012 to 17.7% in 2016, 
although figures appear to 
have levelled off somewhat 
between 2013 and 2016 and 
are still above the national 

  Source: Annual Population Survey, APS (Public Health England graph)             figure.

Smoking prevalence (adults) – current smokers

Hospital stays for alcohol-related harm

Page 59



14

Rates of non-decent homes (aiming to reduce) and standards in the private rented sector 
(aiming to improve)

Reasons for failure of dwellings as a decent home (Source: Allerdale HSCS 2015-16, EHS 2014)

Reason
Dwellings

Per cent 
(of non-decent)

Per cent 
(of stock)

England per 
cent (EHS 2014)

Category 1 hazard dwellings 4,440 53.16% 11.58% 13.17%

In need of repair 2,790 33.38% 7.27% 4.89%

Lacking modern facilities 210 2.45% 0.53% 1.82%

Poor degree of thermal comfort 4,040 48.31% 10.52% 7.85%

Total failures 11,480 - - -

Total dwellings failing the 
Decent Homes Standard 8,360 100.00% 21.79% 21.81%

The table above gives details from the Allerdale Housing Stock Condition Survey 2015/16.  This 
showed that 8,360 dwellings in Allerdale fail to meet the Decent Homes Standard - this is approx. 
22% of all private sector dwellings. The HSCS also showed that:

 There has been a sharp decrease since 2011 in the proportion of dwellings with Category 1 
hazards (the HSCS carried out in 2011 estimated that a quarter of private sector dwellings had 
a Category 1 hazard).  

 This significant decrease is broadly in line with national trends: in 2009 the EHS estimated that 
22.0% of national dwellings had a Category 1 hazard, whereas in 2014 this had fallen to 
13.2%.

 Private rented stock has a higher rate of Category 1 hazards (21.0%) than owner occupation 
(9.7%). 

 Excess cold is the most common Category 1 hazard (for both owner occupied and private 
rented), followed by falls on stairs. 

 The incidence of Category 1 hazards in Keswick (24.3%) and North Allerdale (18.6%) is much 
higher than other parts of the borough.

Satisfaction with sport and leisure facilities (aiming to increase)

 
The chart shows that 
satisfaction with sport 
and leisure facilities has 
been gradually 
increasing from 2008 to 
2016 with a 
corresponding decrease 
in the proportion of 
residents who are 
dissatisfied with these 
facilities.

Source: Allerdale Borough Council Residents Survey 

Page 60



15

Creating a sustainable business summary
We aim develop a commercially focused organization committed to delivering high 

quality, sustainable services to the people, communities and businesses of Allerdale

Satisfaction with council services (aiming to increase)

% of respondents satisfied or dissatisfied with how the Council 
provides services in our area

Almost three-quarters 
(73%) of all respondents – 
as in 2014, when it was 
74% - expressed overall 
satisfaction, with the way 
the Council provides 
services in their area.

Satisfaction varied 
relatively little by locality.

Source: Allerdale Borough Council Residents Survey

Percentage of residents who believe the Council provides value for money (aiming to 
increase)

% of respondents who agree that the Council provides value for money

The Council has 
maintained a 
similar rate of 
respondents who 
agreed that the 
Council provides 
value for money – 
the figure remained 
similar in 2016 to 
that recorded in 
2014 and 2012, 
with 43% agreeing 
that it does provide 
value for money.

Source: Allerdale Borough Council Residents Survey

Page 61



16

Proportion of residents who feel they are kept informed about Council activities and 
services (aiming to increase)

% of respondents who felt they were either ‘very well informed’ or 
‘fairly well informed’ about services provided by the Council

More than half 
(58%) of those 
respondents who 
expressed a view in 
2016 said that they 
feel ‘very well 
informed’ or ‘fairly 
well informed’ about 
services provided 
by the Council, a 
reduction from 
2014, but still higher 
than both 2008 and 
2012.  

Source: Allerdale Borough Council Residents Survey 

Number of residents who feel they can influence decisions (aiming to increase)

% of respondents who agree or disagree that they can influence decisions 
affecting their local area

The 2016 results 
show that only 
29% agree that 
they can influence 
decisions 
affecting their 
local area.  This is 
very similar to 
previous years’ 
findings: 2014 
30% ‘agree’, 2012 
32% ‘agree’ and 
2008 26% ‘agree’.  

Source: Allerdale Borough Council Residents Survey 

Page 62



Allerdale Borough Council

Executive – 24 January 2018

Reedlands Business Park - ERDF/ Delivery of the project

The Reason for the Decision             The Council have received a European Regional 
Development Fund (ERDF) grant offer of £1.5m 
to develop 23,500 sq ft, (2,183 sq mtrs) of 
industrial workshops at Reedlands Business 
Park, Clay Flats in Workington.

By accepting the grant offer the Council will 
commit to constructing the £2.5m development 
scheme, which by implication, means committing 
to the £1m match funding required as the award 
of grant covers 60% of the total development 
cost.

Executive have previously agreed the 
appointment of Pick Everard (£115,000), who 
have now completed the first phase of the design 
work to RIBA 3 specification which allowed the 
full application to be submitted and has resulted 
in the current offer of the grant. (see attachment)

Under the terms of the appointment of Pick 
Everard, by using the Scape Framework, we have 
the ability to novate Pick Everard as designers 
and project managers for the scheme. Their fees 
are included in the £2.5m total development cost. 
This will save time, as there will be no need to 
formally tender this aspect of the work and this 
will be more financially efficient as the fees are 
already confirmed.

Summary of options considered At this stage there are two options available.

1. Decline the offer of grant and not proceed 
with the scheme.

2. Accept the offer of grant and proceed with 
the delivery of the scheme.

Recommendations The Executive is recommended to approve;

1. The acceptance of the £1.5m offer of 
ERDF grant funding from DCLG/Europe.

   

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



2. That the match funding requirement of 
£1m, which has already been approved as 
part of the revised budget is now 
confirmed.

3. To note the novation of Pick Everard as 
designer and external project manager for 
the scheme allowable under the Scape 
Framework.

Financial /  Resource Implications The scheme has been designed and costed up to 
RIBA Stage 3 and a design and Build Tender 
exercise will commence if approval to proceed is 
given. Pick Everard will act as project managers 
reporting to the ABC lead officer 

The current financial commitment is £2.5m of 
which £1.5m (60%) is an ERDF grant and £1m 
(40%) is Council match-funding.

The match funding has been approved as part of 
the Revised 2017/18 Budget and will be financed 
from borrowing.

There is expected to be a positive impact on the 
Council’s Revenue Budget resulting from 
additional income to be generated from the 
scheme.

Legal / Governance Implications  Legal implications for this project are:

1. Legal documentation relating to grant 
scheme.

2. Procurement and contract documentation 
relating the construction project.

 
 Governance implications for this project are: 

1. Compliance with state-aid regulations.

2. Maintaining an audit trail of all procurement 
and financial transactions relating to the 
project

 
Community Safety Implications                                                  Safety Implications for the scheme are:

1. Ensuring that the construction site is 
secure to prevent intrusion by the public.

Page 64



2. Ensuring that the site is safe for 
construction workers.

Health and Safety and Risk         
Management Implications

All health and safety implications will be 
supervised by the external project managers. The 
project managers will provide a detailed risk 
register for the scheme which will also be 
monitored by an internal finance manager who 
will be designated to assist with all aspects of the 
scheme. 

Equality and Diversity  considered                                         Yes

Wards Affected                                                           Moss Bay

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

The following priorities will be satisfied.

1. Economic growth targets in relation to 
business space created and jobs 
created/safe guarded.

2. Local businesses will be supported by 
creating expansion space for grow on   

3. Self-sufficiency targets will be supported 
due to the generation of income

Is this a Key Decision                                                                Yes

Portfolio Holder   Councillor Mark Fryer

Lead Officer  Interim Development Manager reporting to 
 Head of Place Development.
 01900 702752
 steven.slocombe@allerdale.gov.uk
 kevin.kerrigan@allerdale.gov.uk

Report Implications 

Community Safety Y Employment (external to the Council) Y

Financial Y Employment (internal) Y

Legal Y Partnership Y

Social Inclusion Y Asset Management Y

Equality Duty Y Health and Safety Y

Page 65

mailto:steven.slocombe@allerdale.gov.uk
mailto:kevin.kerrigan@allerdale.gov.uk


1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Council have a Corporate Strategy whose ambition includes achieving 
ways to increase self-sufficiency by delivering economic growth projects which 
increase revenue and business rate income. DCLG announced a bidding 
round for ERDF and the Council were successful in being asked to submit a 
formal application for funding for Reedlands Road as the scheme would help 
to deliver the ambition.

1.2 DCLG/ERDF have now given a formal offer of funding support, so this paper 
seeks overall approval to proceed with the development of the scheme by 
requesting the Executive to accept the offer of grant, confirming the match 
funding of £1m and ratifying the novation of Pick Everard to act as project 
manager which is allowable under the Scape Framework.

1.3 In terms of options that need to be considered at this stage there are only two 
choices available which are to either approve the offer of grant to allow the 
scheme to proceed or to decline the offer of grant which will mean that the 
scheme will not go ahead.

1.4   The Council have supported the scheme up to this point which has included 
approval of £115k, to allow the scheme to be designed to RIBA 3 standard 
which supported the full application for grant, 

1.5 The scheme has been rigorously appraised by DCLG before the offer for grant 
was made

2.0      Next Steps

2.1 Following approval by Executive an immediate start on the next phase of the 
project will begin by instructing Pick Everard to commence full design 
drawings to be able to start a tender exercise in order to appoint a contractor 
via a design and build contract.

2.2 The milestones for the project are as follows;

Milestone Start date Completion 
date 

Design and Build Tenders Sought Feb 18 Apr 18
Planning Permission/Certificate of lawfulness ( granted ) Aug 17 Sep 17
Start on Site July 18 Aug 18
Foundations Aug 18 Sep 18
Ground Slabs Sep 18 Oct  18
Superstructure/roofs Nov 18 Feb 19
Units fit out Mar 19 Jun  19
Landscaping/roads/unit fit outs May 19 Jul   19
Construction completion Jul 19 Aug 19
Hand over (PCC)   Aug 19 Sep 19

Page 66



2.3 This timescale has been included in the full application and approved by 
DCLG/ERDF. There will be opportunities to shorten these timescales 
dependent on weather conditions and assuming no abnormal ground 
conditions are encountered when construction starts.

3.0 Finance/Resource Implications

3.1 The Council will be committing £1m in match funding towards the £2.5m 
development scheme with ERDF committing £1.5m representing a 60% 
project contribution.

3.2 The budget required for this scheme has already been approved as part of the 
revised 2017/18 budget, which included an expenditure allocation of £2.5m for 
the scheme, with £1m to be financed by Allerdale BC through additional 
borrowing.

3.3 The Council will need to cash-manage the project as ERDF funding can only 
be claimed after expenditure has occurred resulting in a time-lag receiving 
grant payments.  This will be managed through the existing treasury 
management function within the financial services team.

3.4 The financial services team will oversee the financial running of the project to 
ensure that ERDF grant requirements are adhered to and are accurately 
recorded for audit purposes.

3.5 The borrowing costs have already been included in the revenue budgets and 
medium term financial plans.  The potential income stream following scheme 
completion has not.  There will be no significant income impact for 2018/19 
but income is expected to be received from 2019/20 onwards and will need to 
be built into medium term financial plan.

4.0 Legal Implications and Risks

4.1 The Council will enter into a legal agreement with the European Commission 
when formally accepting the ERDF grant offer.

4.2 The Council will enter into a legal agreement with a contractor to construct the 
development scheme.

4.3 A risk analysis has been prepared which forms part of the application process. 
This will be managed and refined by the external project manager as part of 
the project management package. The internal finance manager responsible 
for the project will oversee this aspect.

4.4 There may be reputational risk to the Council if it is decided not to proceed 
with the scheme

Page 67



5.0 Recommendations

The Executive is recommended to approve:

5.1 The acceptance of the £1.5m offer of ERDF grant funding from DCLG/Europe.

5.2 That the match funding of £1m, which has already been approved as part of 
the revised budget is now confirmed.

5.3 To note the novation of Pick Everard as designer and external project 
manager for the scheme allowable under the Scape Framework.

           

Kevin Kerrigan
Head of Place Development

Page 68


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting Wednesday 8 November 2017 of Executive
	6 Q2 Performance Report 2017/18
	Appendix 1 for Q2 Performance Report 2017/18
	Appendix 1A for Q2 Performance Report 2017/18
	Appendix 1B for Q2 Performance Report 2017/18
	Appendix 1C for Q2 Performance Report 2017/18
	Appendix 1D for Q2 Performance Report 2017/18

	7 Reedlands Business Park - ERDF/Delivery of the project

